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HE KARAKIA TĪMATANGA
Kia tau ngā manaakitanga a te wāhi
ngaro ki runga ki tēnā, ki tēnā o tātou.

Kia mahea te hua mākihikihi kia toi te kupu,
toi te ora, toi te reo ki runga o Ngāti Whātua.

Kia tūturu, kia whakamaua kia tīna!

Hui e, Tāiki e!
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NGĀ
MĀTĀPONO

CORE VALUES

Enhancing the prestige and honour of Ngāti Whātua

Respect, caring and supporting Ngāti Whātua

Guardianship over Ngāti Whātua land, air and sea

MANA NGĀTI WHĀTUA

MANAAKITANGA

KAITIAKITANGA



CO-CHAIRPERSONS’
FOREWORD

Tēnā koutou katoa,

We are pleased to present you with Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua Annual Report 2022 - 23. 
As Co-Chair, and on behalf of the Rūnanga Board, we express our support to the progress that 
has been made during the reporting period. We continue to see excellent growth in the social 
services we provide and in our financial performance.

We would like to acknowledge Allan Pivac, who held one of the Rūnanga Co-Chair roles be-
tween 2019 and April 2023. Allan wanted to spend more time with his whānau and mokopuna 
and made the decision to resign from the board earlier this year. Allan was a major contributor 
during his term.

We would also like to acknowledge the board members that will be leaving Te Rūnanga as part 
of the latest election process. Both myself and fellow Co-Chair John Marsden will also be part of 
the outgoing board members. We thank our uri and marae for your continued support over the 
years. We are privileged to have served you all. The time has now come to recast the net and 
make way for new ones to come through.

To the five trustees that will be staying on, and our newly appointed trustees,
we congratulate you and wish you the very best for the future.

As we step into the future, we must ensure that we leave nobody behind. There is much work to 
be done to ensure we can sustain ourselves and be resilient in the environment that we now live. 

Ngā mihi.

Dame Rangimārie Naida Glavish DNZM JP 
Co-Chairperson
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MANAHAUTŪ REPORT
Tēnā koutou katoa,

The 2022-23 year was a hard year, and I would like to thank my staff and the Rūnanga Board for 
their efforts and support. Overall, I think we have done well given the environment we have been 
operating, and the challenges that have presented themselves along the way.

As we have done in previous years, we have created a self-analysis of our performance against the 
objectives and key performance indicators we set ourselves and have included it in this report. 

 The priority for the reporting period has been the completion of Wai 303. In December 2022 the 
Crown made a final offer to settle Ngāti Whātua claims and the Rūnanga board agreed to the offer 
subject to obtaining ratification from uri. The Crowns offer is subject to resolving a range of issues 
raised by our 3 Post Settlement Governance Entities (PSGEs). I can say that more recent discussions 
amongst a reference group that was set up to deal with these internal matters is making good prog-
ress. Once these matters are resolved there will be a few external matters to resolve before we 
have a clear pathway to bring closure to the Wai 303 claim. All going well we still hope to ratify 
the Crowns offer in the first half of 2024.
  
The Dome Valley Landfill application by Waste Management was the second most important issue 
for the Rūnanga. The first hearing was held at the office of Ngāti Manuhiri in 2020. In that hearing 
we lost our case. In my view we lost because we had commissioners with strong pakeha views mak-
ing the decisions. It was clear from their judgement they didn’t care about anything we had to say. 
The only Māori commissioner on the panel, Sheina Tepania, supported Ngāti Whātua on everything 
we said. 
   
Our appeal against the decision was finally heard in the Environment Court in April this year at Te 
Aō Mārama Community Centre in Te Hana. It was pleasing that we had two strong māori commis-
sioners who sat on the hearings panel, and we had two Environment Court Judges who are familiar 
with māori values and tikanga.
 
It was disappointing that at the last minute Ngāti Manuhiri made a deal with Waste Management 
and went in the opposite direction to the Rūnanga and our marae. In the end we had to respect 
the decision made by Ngāti Manuhiri and put our best foot forward to continue arguing our case. 
I sat through the hearing and can say that all the Rūnanga, PSGE, and marae witnesses did well in 
presenting evidence.
  
At this point the Environment Court has not decided on the appeal. If the application is approved, 
we expect there to be several conditions put in place to mitigate risks identified in our case. The best 
decision though is for the court to decline the application.
 
MACA has been another priority for the Rūnanga during the year. Good progress has been made 
on the inner and outer Whangārei Harbor. Although there is a bit more to be done to place a finer 
point on the evidence being put up to the High Court, in February 2024, we will be ready. For me, 
this has been the most difficult piece of work to do given what I would describe as the impacts of 
colonization on our Whangārei whānau.
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Our Hauora parts of our business are extremely important insofar as the services that Te Haa 
Oranga and Kāhui Tū Kaha provide. Both continue to do a huge amount of mahi in the spaces they 
operate, making a big difference in the lives of those they have served. For Kāhui Tū Kaha, they 
continue to grow in every aspect of their business, mental health services, social housing, and reve-
nue. Te Haa Oranga has refocused their business away from covid to other services and contracts. 
Te Haa Oranga provides the greatest financial support to the operational costs of Te Rūnanga. I 
must acknowledge the fantastic leadership we have in Te Haa Oranga.

For the first time, we have put in place a position to work with marae. We did not fill the position un-
til halfway through the year, however, we managed to make headway on some of the activities we 
set ourselves. In the bigger picture we want to learn how the Rūnanga can support our marae. We 
do not want to assume we know the answers, we want to speak directly to marae so they can tell 
us what their needs are. Insurance and maintenance are the two biggest problems that have been 
identified by marae we have spoken to.

In relation to our commercial operations, we continue to do well in our returns on fishing assets. 
However, given many of the problems we are confronted with in the inshore fishery we expect our 
returns to reduce over time as catches are lessened and areas are closed to commercial fishing. 
The commercial board has been contemplating investment in aquaculture to offset these declines 
over time and this work is continuing. One further comment is in relation to the commercial boards 
investment in a property in Kent Rd, Whangārei. It is pleasing that we will start building 16 rental 
properties next year which will be made available to whānau in Whangārei, at discounted rentals. 
The government has approved a $9m grant to the Rūnanga to build these homes. The Rūnanga will 
have ownership of these homes.

Finally, I would like to end by making some comment on the new government. In my view, things are 
going to get worse in terms of race relations between māori and non-māori. A referendum on the 
Treaty of Waitangi can only end badly as most people in this country, who are pakeha, will move to 
water down the importance and place of this country’s founding document. Ngāti Whātua will need 
to develop strategies to ensure we can lift our uri above these political actions and be successful in 
everything we do as we move into the future.

Ngā mihi.

Alan T Riwaka
Manahautu







NATIONAL
IWI CHAIRS

Support and Advocate projects of common interest to Ngāti Whātua

• Participate in Te National Iwi Chairs 
Quarterly hui.

• Participate in the Asset Holding 
Company Quarterly hui.

• Support for Pou Tangata Strategy.

• Support for Hauora Iwi Leadership 
Group (ILG).

National Iwi Chairs meet quarterly to dis-
cuss matters of national significance such 
as water and Resource Manament Act and 
hauora, and Oranga Tamariki, and justice 
reforms. Te Runanga has played a major 
role, and in sone case a lead role, in some 
of this mahi. 

The Asset Holdings hui are a collaboration 
of iwi operational entities sharing and sup-
porting Maori business growth. Our Runan-
ga has participated in the AHC hui that are 
held in advance of Iwi Chairs hui. One of 
the main issues advanced through this forum 
was housing. Besides gaining good insights 
into housing initiatives across the country, 
the forum was used to advance Pou Ahi, 
which was a $50m fund from government to 
support housing in Te Taitokerau. This intia-
tive was driven through Te Kahu o Taonui, 
the collective of Taitokerau Iwi.  

Building working relationships with other 
AHCs is valuable in terms of broadening 
networks and providing Te Runanga with 
business opportunities. Importantly, the 
government engage directly with AHCs on 
Vrious matters including funding. As with the 
Pou Ahi funding, funding becomes availa-
bles through the intiatives advances through 
the collective voices of AHCs.

Pou Tangata is the social service entity that 
supports the National Iwi Chairs Forum with 
initiatives that support the health and wellbe-
ing of iwi services.

The work undertaken by Pou Tangata has re-
sulted in a strategy that has been approved 
by Nationa Iwi Chairs Forum. Technicians 
have been assigned and operate under a 
Pou Tangata ILG.

Hauora ILG is a collective of iwi health pro-
fessionals who support Iwi Maori Partner-
ship Board.

Attend National Iwi Chairs forums.
100% COMPLETED

Promotion of key issues of national iwi signif-
icance. 100% COMPLETED

Attend National Iwi Chairs Asset Holdings 
hui. 100% COMPLETED

Support and promote Maori business net-
work in NICF. 100% COMPLETED

Management and Leadership conferences 
attended. 100% COMPLETED

Pou Tangata strategy completed and adopt-
ed. 100% COMPLETED

Pou Tangata technical table with technicians 
supported. 100% COMPLETED

Support of Pou Tangata ILG’s
Hauora ILG strategy completed and adopt-
ed. IMPB investigated. 100% COMPLETED

Hauora technical table with technicians cre-
ated. 100% COMPLETED

Support for Iwi Maori Partnership Boards 
(Nationally). 50% COMPLETED
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TE KAHU
O TAONUI

• Participate in Te Kahu o Taonui Hui.

• Te Kahu o Taonui collectivizes iwi
cultural fisheries take in Te Tai Tokerau.

• Advance Aquaculture Strategy.

• Participate in Housing Strategy.

• Resolve Issues with Amokura.

• Support the Te Kahu o Taonui MSD
initiative supporting whānau.

Te Rūnanga has been actively involved in the busi-
ness of Te Kahu o Taonui during the 2022-23 year. 
The organisation has done well in delivering a broad 
range of services to the Iwi of Te Tai Tokerau. The or-
ganisation has now shifted its focus away from covid 
to focus on new emerging issues. The common focus 
in the last year related to tikanga, tangata, tahua, 
and taiao.

Te Rūnanga has succeeded in leading the application 
and approval of Moana NZ as a kupenga. Although 
the intent was to set it up for Te Tai Tokerau, its estab-
lishment can be used to hold and catch fish for all iwi 
across the country. The Rūnanga next step is to assist 
Moana NZ to operationalise the kupenga. Te Kahu o 
Taonui has also expressed their support for a review 
of the North island Customary Regulations. This proj-
ect is being led by the Rūnanga.

The Rūnanga is part of a Te Tai Tokerau collective 
comprising iwi, hapū and marae, that is advancing 
the development of a Tai Tokerau aquaculture strat-
egy. The strategy development is also being support 
by the Ministry of Primary Industries.

Te Rūnanga supported the development of a housing 
strategy within Te Kahu o Taonui. This mahi led to the 
crown providing $50m in funding to Te Pou Ahi to 

support whānau and hapū housing initiatives.
Issues revolving around the transitioning of activities 
from Amokura to Te Pae Roa were achieved. What 
was remaining at the end of the year was to transfer 
funds across from Amokura to Te Pae Roa.

Te Kahu o Taonui has an agreement with Ministry of 
Social Development for the Regional Iwi Leadership 
Group. A regional Iwi group has been created and 
supported by all Iwi of Te Tai Tokerau.

Te Kahu o Taonui has successfully achieved its ob-
jectives, actively participating in forums, supporting 
cultural initiatives, and contributing to the wellbeing 
of Te Tai Tokerau. The commitment to collaboration, 
strategy adoption, and successful implementation is 
evident in the completion of all outlined objectives. 
Looking forward, the focus remains on sustaining and 
building upon these achievements for the benefit of 
Ngāti Whātua and the wider rohe of Te Tai Tokerau.

Attend Te Kahu o Taonui Chairs forums.
100% COMPLETED

Attend Te Kahu o Taonui operations forums.
100% COMPLETED

Promote key issues to National Iwi Chairs forums.
100% COMPLETED

Creation of a strategy supporting the Moana NZ 
Kupenga. 100% COMPLETED

Creation and support of an Aquaculture strategy by 
Te Kahu o Taonui. 100% COMPLETED

Housing strategy completed and adopted.
100% COMPLETED

Ngāti Whātua support Te Kahu o Taonui to initiate 
a Social Service support network in Te Tai Tokerau. 
100% COMPLETED





Treaty Settlements

TE TIRITI O 
WAITANGI

Ko ngā take me ngā kaupapa nui a Ngāti Whātua e whai 
pānga ana ki ngā mātāpono o Te Tiriti o Waitangi.

•Develop a new PSGE structure to take Ngāti Whātua into the future.
•Complete WAI303 negotiations with the Crown 

•Resolve mandate and overlapping claims.



A detailed work programme is devel-
oped to achieve completion of the Wai 
303 claim.

Finalize historical account.

Complete outstanding negotiations:
•Confirm deferred settlement properties to be 
included in settlement.
•Confirm properties with rights of first refusals 
to be included in settlement.
•Confirm number and value of school proper-
ties and meet with appropriate Minister with a 
view to optimize schools.
•Confirm inclusion of Puhoi properties in 
settlement.
•Finalize Manukapua proposal.
•Finalize fisheries protocol.
•Finalize government relationships protocol.
•Confirm inclusion of Awataha Marae.

Resolve mandate issues:
•Resolve overlapping claims.
•Resolve Patuharakeke mandate.
•Resolve Te Roroa mandate.
•Confirm marae to be included in the PSGE.
•Clarify WAI numbers to be included in 
WAI303 claim and complete text to be linked 
to WAI numbers.

Complete new Post Settlement Entity 
and representation matters:
•Finalize Post Settlement Governance Entity 
[PSGE] Trust Deed and structure. 
•Finalize representation model for PSGE.

Consultation and communications:
•Hold consultation with uri regarding 
WAI303, PSGE, structure and representation 
proposals.
•Hold webinars with uri that are unable to 
attend consultation hui in person. 
•Provide monthly uri communications.

Develop a transitional plan to the 
new PSGE.

Maintain uri database for the pur-
pose of ratification and communicat-
ing with uri. Review the requirements 
for Te Tōpū Ika and align its functions 
to represent the interests of its mem-
bership.

At the end of 2022 the Crown made a full 
and final offer to Te Rūnanga based on 
negotiations that have been ongoing for 
several years. The offer was made subject to 
achieving resolution on various issues, in-
cluding issues raised by Ngāti Whātua Post 
Settlement Entities (PSGEs). The Rūnanga 
board agreed in principle to the offer on the 
terms set down by the Crown. The offer will 
be put to uri in 2024 for ratification.

A big part of the mahi the Rūnanga has 
been working on is the new PSGE structure. 
The basic structure of the organization will 
follow other Ngāti Whātua PSGEs with 
corporate, commercial, and charitable 
components. The structure will go one step 
further to formally recognize the role of the 
Kauhanganui, marae and poupou in ensur-

TREATY
SETTLEMENTS
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ing matters of tikanga can be addressed in 
an environment that is independent of the 
Rūnanga PSGE. More work is required in 
the 2023-24 year to tease out the detail and 
how the tikanga component will relate to 
decision making inside the PSGE, and how 
the two can work together. The other com-
ponents that are still to be agreed relate to 
representation on the Rūnanga, how they 
are appointed, and the number of represen-
tatives from each takiwā.

Much work has been done on working out 
how to manage Te Tōpū Ika, which was 
established in the early 2000s to receive, 
hold, and manage fishing quota emanating 
from the Treaty of Waitangi Fisheries Settle-
ment Act 1992. Te Roroa and Kawerau ā 
Maki are linked to the quota Ngāti Whātua 
hold and therefore must benefit from these 
fishing assets. Because they do not fit the 
intended beneficiaries under the new pro-
posed PSGE, Te Tōpū Ika will be placed out-
side the new PSGE so obligations to these 
two iwi can continue to be met. The trustees 
of Te Tōpū Ika will be those appointed to the 
new Ngāti Whātua PSGE structure. Te Tōpū 
Ika will remain as a charitable organization.

In relation to Marae, it is intended to remove 
2 marae – Waikaraa and Waikaraka - from 
the list of Ngāti Whātua affiliated marae. 
These two have requested this on the ba-
sis they belong to Te Roroa. Any changes 
must be made before the Rūnanga PSGE is 
placed in law. Beyond this point it will be ex-
tremely difficult, if not impossible, to amend 
in the future.

The Rūnanga database is being maintained 
and improved to ensure it has the best avail-
able uri information for the purpose of rat-
ifying the Crowns settlement offer in 2024. 
Currently we have roughly 4000 uri for 
whom we do not have contact details. Uri 
are encouraged to check that the Rūnanga 
has their contact details. We want everyone 
to participate in the ratification of the settle-
ment offer, and any other future business of 
the Rūnanga.

The Rūnanga has been engaged with Patu-
harakeke for at least 4 years on a process to 
enable their uri registered with the Rūnanga 
to vote on the withdrawal of the Patuhar-
akeke mandate from Wai303. This process 
will have no effect on the whakapapa be-
tween Patuharakeke and Ngāti Whātua 
uri. Patuharakeke wishes to have their own 
PSGE.

At the end of the 2022-23-year the main 
issues to resolve included the following mat-
ters.

•PSGE Model and Deed
•Te Tōpū Ika.
•Manukapua
•RFRs inside Te Uri o Hau
•Kaipara Moana Governance representa-
tion.
•Te Roroa Mandate 
•Overlapping claims
•Patuharakeke removal from mandate
•Deciding which Wai numbers are in and 
out of Wai 303.

Wai303 Negotiations have been completed. 
100% COMPLETED

Mandate and overlapping claims have been 
resolved. 50% COMPLETED

A new PSGE structure and associated Trust 
Deed have been completed.
60% COMPLETED

Consultation and communications with uri 
have been completed to a satisfactory stan-
dard. 40% COMPLETED

Te Tōpū Ika requirements has been reviewed 
and dealt with. 80% COMPLETED

The Crown offer has been ratified with uri 
and is supported. 0% COMPLETED



MARINE
AND COASTAL

The Rūnanga is prepared for Whangārei
harbor hearings commencing February 2024.

•Put in place the capacity to man-
age the MACA case.

•Write the traditional history of 
Ngāti Whātua in support of its 
mana whenua mana moana with-
in the rohe of Ngāti Whātua.

•Consult with claimants in relation 
to the Whangārei inner and outer 
harbor hearings.

•Hold wānanga to improve uri 
knowledge of the MACA case and 
the evidence required to meet the 
legal tests.

•Collect kaumatua/oral evidence 
in support of the Whangārei hear-
ings.

•Create Maps to support MACA 
claim.

•Prepare legal submissions in sup-
port of the Whangārei case.

•Decide the best way to hold 
MACA titles.

•Provide monthly uri communica-
tions.
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Marae to succeed in their respective MACA 
claims and for them to hold any titles that 
may be issued by the High Court.

Affidavits in support of Ngāti Whātua rights 
and interests in Whangārei, including map-
ping, were completed. The MOU referred 
to above supports recognition of Ngāti 
Whātua rights and interests to the northern 
boundary.

Most of the work achieved during the re-
porting period will carry over into the 2023-
24 year. We expect to make improvements 
in all areas.

In relation to communications, during the 
reporting period we had no communications 
capacity to achieve more effective communi-
cations. Our team did however communicate 
directly and regularly with uri in Whangārei.

A project plan has been scoped out. 
100% COMPLETED

Support from marae and applicants for a 
collaborative MACA approach has been 
achieved. 70% COMPLETED

The traditional history of Ngāti Whātua 
has been written. 100% COMPLETED

Good progress has been made in collect-
ing evidence in support of MACA. 
100% COMPLETED

Regular communications with uri and 
marae on progress has been achieved. 
100% COMPLETED

Agreement in principle between claim-
ants on how titles will be held has been 
achieved. 100% COMPLETED

Additional capacity to support the Chief Ex-
ecutive manage the MACA project was put 
in place in January 2023.

 A detailed work program and strategy was 
developed to help guide MACA activities 
associated with the Whangārei inner and 
outer harbor MACA claim.

Te Rūnanga led and participated in several 
Ngāti Whātua / Te Parawhau, and other 
claimant hui relating to Whangārei inner 
and outer harbor MACA claims. This includ-
ed the Rūnanga advocating approaches to 
the hearings based on the Rūnanga strategy 
to optimize the best outcomes for iwi, hapū, 
and marae claimants.

Waananga were held with Te Parawhau / 
Ngāti Whātua uri on marae and at the offic-
es of the Rūnanga.    

A collaborative approach to MACA claims 
has and continues to be advocated by Te 
Rūnanga for the inner and outer Whangārei 
Harbor. Up to the end of this reporting 
period a collaborative had been achieved 
via an MOU with one of the two Te Paraw-
hau applicants. A working group comprising 
representatives from both Te Parawhau and 
Ngāti Whātua was established. 
Te Rūnanga commenced work on devel-
oping ideas on how MACA titles could be 
translated into meaningful outcomes. For 
example, veto rights and shared decision 
making inside and outside the Whangārei 
Harbor. The concepts being developed build 
on what has been achieved in Kaipara Moa-
na.

Te Rūnanga will not hold any titles that may 
arise from the MACA hearings. The role of 
Te Rūnanga is to support hapū, whānau and 





Ko ngā huarahi o te ao hauora kia whai oranga 
Ngā uri o Ngāti Whātua.

The health and wellbeing of uri and others within the rohe of Ngāti Whātua 
have remained a key focus for the Rūnanga throughout the past year. Te 
Ha Oranga and Kāhui Tū Kaha have continued to make significant improve-
ments throughout its operations.

HAUORA
Health & Well-Being



TUPUKIA HUA
SUSTAINABILITY AND GROWTH

Transforming to a system that is responsive, integrated, well-resourced 
and sustainable, so that gains made today form a powerful foundation 

for future generations.

•A future focussed infrastructure 
and diversified revenue base to 
support transformative outcomes.
 
•Improve efficiency and effective-
ness of the investment in services 
with a view to ensuring equity 
of funding and Māori health out-
comes achievement.

•Improve infrastructure to support 
increased agility across opera-
tions.

For the year 2022 – 2023, Te Hā 
Oranga: 

•Achieved 1% growth in human infrastruc-
ture.

•Developed, implemented, and are leading 
the Drug Treatment Unit (DTU) at the Auck-
land Regional Women’s Correctional Facility 
(ARWCF).

•Progressed a Residential Reintegration 
Facility in Wairua Road, Te Raki Paewhenua. 
This is a first for Iwi Māori, and as such Te 
Hā Oranga understands the importance to 
ensure high performance and success for 
whānau, to provide a template and facilitate 
opportunities for other Iwi in the future. 

•Commenced the Awhi Ora Service work-
ing collaboratively with GP clinics and oth-
er community providers to receive mental 
health support referrals. 

•Remain in discussion with Health New 
Zealand regarding a proposal to increased 
capability, capacity, and infrastructure to 
provider greater support for whānau experi-
encing poor mental health outcomes.
 
•Initial discussions to commence data col-
lection regarding the prevalence and use 
of Rongoā across the rohe to compile some 
base data as the first step to the develop-
ment of any Rongoā strategy which MUST 
be done with those who are subject matter 
experts to maintain the integrity of rongoā.
 
•Analysed internal whānau data and 
monitored external intelligence to 
develop two proposals:  

1. To investigate opportunities to pilot an 
independent social housing hub with wrap 
around support into Dargaville, and, 
2. To purchase or build a facility to be de-
veloped into a Whare Oranga Hub in Dar-
gaville in collaboration with other Iwi, hapū, 
local Crown services, and others. 

Completed Pare Oranga 2.0 organi-
sational-wide review.
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Increase FTE for delivery of social ser-
vices, mental health, and addictions 
support. 100% COMPLETED
 
Investigate Rongoā solutions for whānau 
and draft a Rongoā strategy.
100% COMPLETED

Greater funding investment into services 
across the organisation.
100% COMPLETED

Review the infrastructure required to 
support future growth and sustainability. 
100% COMPLETED

PIRI
NGĀTAHI

ENDURING PARTNERSHIPS

•Position Te Hā Oranga as a cen-
tral player in a network of high 
performing providers within de-
fined community contexts.
 
•Maintain and increase kaupa-
pa-based MOU’s and service level 
agreement to ensure Mana-en-
hancing relationships for the provi-
sion of services to Whānau.

•Increase representation on 
boards, forums and committees 
that influence the advancement 
of the sacred obligations in Māori 
health gain.

•Appointed the previous General Man-
ager, Boyd Broughton, as a Director of 
Health to support the provision of region-
al and national leadership across all the 
determinants of health.

•Seconded the Director of Health to 
manage the Northern Regional Iwi-
Māori Partnership Board (Te Taumata 
Hauora o te Kahu o Taonui) as their 
Chief Executive.

•Achieved representation on the 
many local, regional, and nation-
al groups, advisories, and gover-
nance boards for kaupapa that 
are priorities for Māori Health, 
such as: 

•The National Suicide Prevention
Strategy.
•The National Youth Worker Workforce 
Development.
•Māori Monitoring Equity Group.
•National Cervical Screening Pro-
gramme Equity Group.
•National Bowel Screening Programme 
Equity Group.
•And others. 

•After many challenges from legal ex-
perts within the Department of Correc-
tions (DoC), facilitated the development 
of a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU) with the Department of Correc-
tions which is scheduled for signing in 



late 2023 and increases accountability 
of the DoC to Iwi-Māori regarding out-
comes for Māori engaged with the Cor-
rections system. 

•Development of a Strategic Partner-
ship Agreement with Oranga Tamariki is 
being progressed which along with the 
MoU with DoC asks for greater devolu-
tion of resources and funding, along with 
expansion of legislation that governs and 
further enables Iwi Māori workforce.

•A relationship matrix was developed 
under the Pare Oranga 2.0 review. This 
has provided data and insights into any 
blind spots, gaps, and areas where ad-
vancement and progress are needed. An 
urgent plan will be developed to address 
these gaps once identified. 

Ensuring that Te Hā Oranga is providing 
leadership in services across all deter-
minants of health; housing, education, 
employment, racism and poverty.
100% COMPLETED

Develop a relationship matrix that will 
analyse all existing MOUs, and service 
level agreements to ensure that all gaps 
are addressed. 100% COMPLETED

Develop an appoint, a director of Health 
to provide regional and national leader-
ship across all the determinants of health 
and achieve Māori health gains.
100% COMPLETE
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TE TŪ TE ĀHUREA O
TE HUNGA HĀPAI

ORGANISATIONAL CULTURE
Uphold the purpose, values, and obligations for

transformative leadership in Mana enhancing practice.

•Develop a capable, confident, 
and culturally, competent work-
force.

•Advance Te Reo Ake – Ngāti 
Whātua.  

•Demonstrate strong, account-
able leadership which contrib-
utes to whānau, hapū and Iwi 
happy development.

Develop a robust workforce development 
plan. 100% COMPLETED

Develop and implement a Ngāti Whātua 
Reo Māori plan. 100% COMPLETED

Invest in Māori leadership development 
for all staff. 100% COMPLETED

Completed workforce planning includ-
ing the integration of kōrero tupuna, 
kōrero Hitori, for Ngāti Whātua to instill 
the tikanga, Hitori, and stories of Ngāti 
Whātua across the rohe into our service 
delivery. This is based on the under-
standing that some of the solutions and 
healing for whānau will lie within our 
reo Māori, our tikanga, our customs, our 
stories, our rich histories, and our unique 
and powerful environment. 

Identified future leaders in need of fur-
ther investment for professional devel-
opment. This will continue to be applied 
through leadership programmes and 
further education opportunities sup-
ported under the Wai-Hihiri Career Pro-
gramme. Succession planning is critical 
as the organisation experiences growth, 
increased leadership capability and ca-
pacity is essential.



Ensuring Whānau ora is represented 
through all services within the organi-
sation. 100% COMPLETED

Implementing Hua Oranga as a Kau-
papa-Māori framework to measure 
outcomes for Whānau well-being.
100% COMPLETED

Ensure that tikanga Ngāti Whātua, 
Whānau and Service uses are repre-
sented at all levels of decision-making.
100% COMPLETED

The Whānau Ora Framework has been 
implemented throughout all services 
and all whānau community interactions. 
This ensures when our staff meet with 
whānau, they have access for them and 
their whānau to our suite of services to 
help build their own capacity to deter-
mine their own wellbeing. 

•Develop an intra- and inter-sec-
toral strength-based approach to 
supporting Whānau to achieve the 
maximum potential in terms of 
health and well-being. 

•Indigeneity - Ensure health de-
velopment in decision-making 
is based on the aspirations of 
Whānau.

•Provide Whānau-centred, 
strengths-based services inclusive 
of Rongoa, pūrākau, marama-
taka, and other taonga tuku iho 
reflecting innovation for transfor-
mative Whānau well-being.

WHĀNAU ORA
IMPACT ON WHĀNAU

The Hua Oranga evaluation framework 
has been piloted into two of our services, 
all relevant staff received training, and 
an evaluation of the framework is under-
way. 

A tikanga Ngāti Whātua booklet has 
been reviewed, redeveloped, repro-
duced, and issued to all staff. There has 
been a workshop among staff seeking 
their input and feedback. This booklet is 
made available to whānau.

A series of Consumer Wānanga have 
been developed and implemented across 
the rohe as we seek to collate feedback 
and learnings as part our continued qual-
ity improvement. 
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KOUNGA MATUA
PEAK QUALITY

Ngā Kaupapa tuku iho – Mātauranga Māori and other evidence 
will inform policy, planning, quality programming and practice.

•Exceed Whānau and stakeholder 
expectations through quality out-
comes and continuous quality
improvement.

•Develop robust data, digital lit-
eracy and technology as enables 
that support a future-focused
system.

•Develop Mātauranga Māori re-
search and outcomes measures. 
Maintain, and extend where ap-
propriate quality standards
certification.

Pare Oranga 2.0 has completed a review 
and updated all policies and procedures to 
ensure best practice across all services. 

Developed and implemented several evalu-
ation frameworks and methods to ensure a 
robust process for gathering feedback and 
analysis to ensure services are part of a 
cycle of continual quality improvement.

Maintained their Home-Based Services Ac-
creditation and achieved Level 2 for Social 
Services Accreditation. This allows us to 
expand what services we can offer to our 
whānau in their natural environments.

Continuous quality improvement based 
on innovation and growth.
100% COMPLETED

Implement data recommendations and 
improve client’s data collection.
100% COMPLETED

Implement Ngāti Whātua Kia Eke phase 
one. 100% COMPLETED

To achieve and maintain all relevant 
accreditations that contribute to Whānau 
aspirations and effective service delivery. 
100% COMPLETED



KĀHUI 
TŪ KAHA
Social Housing
He akiaki i te mana o ngā tāngata i te rohe o Ngāti 
Whātua kia whai kāinga, whai whare whakaruruhau.





KAHUI
TU KAHA

Over the 12-month period, we provided services to 5,346 tāngata. 
The total number of individuals when counted by service team is 
6,986 as some tāngata received more than one of our services. 

There was little change in our range of services during 2022-2023:

•We provided the same mental health services as in the previous year – respite, 
residential and various mobile mental health services.

•For our social housing services, there was a decrease in emergency accommo-
dation with an increase in transitional housing.

•There was an increase in our youth housing volumes and a move from a sup-
ported flat sharing model to transitional housing with independent apartments.

•We commenced delivering the refugee resettlement service in July 2022, our 
only significant new service in this year.

•We prepared for the opening of a 24/7 support service at Te Mātāwai, a large 
public housing complex at Greys Avenue in central Auckland.

Mental Health Mobile Support - 21.5%

All Other Services - 14.6%

Mental Health Respite & Residential - 7.7%

Social Housing - 56.2%

People Receiving Our Service By Service Type:

People Receiving Our Social Housing Services By Service Type:

Intensive Support - To Be Housed - 19.4%

Emergency Housing - 25.4%

Traditional Housing - 20%

Permanent Housing - 17.8%

All Others Social Housing - 17.3%

Maori - 37.7%

Asian - 21%

Pacific - 20.1%

All Others - 21.3%

Ethnicity Of People Receiving Our Services:

Maori - 48.7%

Asian - 8.4%

Pacific - 24.5%

All Others - 18.5%

Ethnicity Of People Receiving Our Social Housing Services:
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•Our growth has been limited by difficulties in recruiting sufficient suitable staff. We had a 
21% increase in staffing over the 12-month period. Most of our staff are in direct delivery 
roles, recognising that we are primarily an operational organisation providing mental health 
& wellbeing services, social housing, and social services in Auckland and Whangārei.

• Our social housing properties are a mix of residential tenancies which we sublet, private-
ly leased public housing, and both privately leased and Kāinga Ora transitional housing. 
We own properties related to our respite and residential mental health services, plus two 
residential properties for transitional housing purposes. 

•Our annual plan for 2022-2023 focused on developing organisational systems and capabili-
ties as a response to our significant growth in the previous year. We completed or commenced 
these planned systems improvements.

Maori - 35%

Pacific - 37%

Asian - 15%

Other - 13%

Direct Service Delivery - 79%

Property & Tenancy Management - 10%

Business Services & Executive Team - 10%

Revenue ($82.8m)
Auckland DHB

Counties Manukau DHB

Waitemata DHB

MHUD

MBIE

Oranga Tamariki

Rainbow Tick
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Ko ngā rautaki me ngā huarahi whakapiki i te 
mātauranga mo ngā uri o Ngāti Whātua.

The Education at Te Rūnanga O Ngāti Whātua, has had the privilege of 
spearheading the development and implementation of an iwi-wide education 
strategy. This report presents a comprehensive overview of the achievements 
and challenges faced by the education portfolio throughout 2023.

MĀTAURANGA
Education



MĀTAURANGA
EDUCATION

Create a history of Ngāti Whātua.
Support establishment of Kura within Ngāti Whātua rohe.

Develop and implement a te reo program for Ngāti Whātua Uri.

•Put in place the capacity to man-
age the education portfolio.

•Consult with the Kauhanganui, 
PSGEs, hapū and uri on the devel-
opment of a strategic plan.

•Review prior strategies.

•Develop with the Ministry of Ed-
ucation a strategy to teach Ngāti 
Whātua history in schools/kura 
within the rohe of Ngāti Whātua.

•Write stories to support the edu-
cation of Ngāti Whātua whānau.

•Write a history of Ngāti Whātua 
as a resource available to uri and 
teaching Ngāti Whātua history.

•Identify relevant research to 
underpin the education portfolio/
strategy [data/statistics]

•Support whānau to establish te 
puna, kohanga, kura kaupapa 
and whare wananga.

•Provide monthly uri communica-
tions.
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James Barrett was appointed to the Edu-
cation portfolio as a .5 position. Given the 
education position was not put in place until 
halfway through the last financial year, 
progress with delivery of the 2022-23 annu-
al plan has been limited. Nonetheless, some 
progress was made.

A review of several previously used educa-
tion strategies was undertaken in the third 
quarter of last year. The review enabled us 
to identify key principles and fundamentals 
for any future strategy that is developed for 
Ngāti Whātua.

The Ministry of Education was engaged to 
see what supports they could provide the 
Rūnanga to develop resources for teaching 
Ngāti Whātua history in schools / kura. The 
Ministry of Education have responded posi-
tively to the invitation. Previous governments 
have expressed a commitment to teaching 
local history and the subject has also formed 
part of the relationship discussions inside of 
Wai303. 

The Rūnanga has put in place a strategy 
to archive historical information relating to 
Ngāti Whātua at its Whangārei office. The 
archive will include early Māori Land Court 
records and will be able to be accessed by 
uri. The Rūnanga will build up a library of 
records to support uri learn the history of 
Ngāti Whātua.

Significant information has been collected 
on the demographics and distribution of 
Ngāti Whātua uri across the rohe mai Tama-
ki ki Maunganui.  This information is critical 
in terms of where the Rūnanga places its 
attention and applies its strategy.

The Rūnanga has supported initiatives re-
lating to education and te reo.  With the 
support of our northern Wairoa trustees, we 
have been involved in the development and 
implementation of a strategy to support Te 
Pukenga in Dargaville. We have also provid-
ed support to the building of a kura at Kai-
waka. We must make sure that our tamariki 
located in rural areas have good access to 
the best education.

One of the issues that has arisen during the 
last 6 month of the 2022-23 year has been 
the role of the Rūnanga in education, now 
and in the future. The Rūnanga is transition-
ing to a new Post Settlement Entity and its 
roles will change to meet the new environ-
ment in which we operate. Our PSGEs and 
hapū are taking a greater role in education 
initiatives, therefore, the Rūnanga, PSGEs, 
and uri will need to decide what role, if any, 
it will have in the future.

Adequate capacity is in place to enable 
Te Rūnanga to achieve its goals and ob-
jectives. 100% COMPLETED

A Rūnanga education strategy has been 
developed. 20% COMPLETED

A history of Ngāti Whātua has been 
developed as a resource.
20% COMPLETED

Research has been completed regarding 
the demographics and learning of Ngāti 
Whātua uri. 100% COMPLETED

Uri are adequately informed of matters 
relating to Education and the work of the 
Rūnanga. 20% COMPLETED



Ko ngā kaupapa whai rawa me te anga 
whakamua o ngā  pūtea ki roto i ngā kaupapa 
whai hua mo Ngāti Whātua.

The year 2022-2023 marked significant progress for Te Rūnanga O Ngāti 
Whātua in our commercial endeavors. Guided by our ambitious goals and 
strategic actions, we have made substantial strides in various sectors, including 
fishing, housing, aquaculture, rongoā, energy, and technology.

WHAI MANAWA
Commercial Board 



WHAI MANAWA
Commercial Board 



WHAI MANAWA
COMMERCIAL BOARD

Corporate responsibilities:
•Develop an overarching commercial 
strategy.
•Review financial capacity.
•Develop a SYPO
•Review commercial structure.

Fishing:
•Continue to evolve Ngāti Whātua in-
vestment of fishing assets into Takitimu 
and other fishing partners.
•Assess investment in Takitimu online 
site.
•Benchmark value of fishing assets.
•Input to stock assessment processes.
•Participate in industry led stakeholder 
groups.
•Work with Te Tai Tokerau Iwi in devel-
oping kupenga and resolutions regard-
ing stock management.
•Work with Uri/Kaitiaki in the northern 
rohe to determine the utilising of custom-
ary tools to assist in the protection of 
freshwater waterways and fisheries of 
importance.
•Undertake a review of Te Topu Ika to 
align with new PSG.E 

Housing:
•Complete housing strategy
•Finalise Unitec Joint Venture with Whai 
Rawa
•Establish Mai Fund Joint Venture with 
Power Finance
•Complete Kākano and mortgage Fi-
nance proposal

•Complete Dargaville Hospital Evalua-
tion
•Continue Dargaville Racecourse Project
•Continue work with MHUD regarding 
Whangārei properties.
•Support WAI303 undertake due dili-
gence on settlement properties including 
schools.

Aquaculture:
•Appoint project manager.
•Develop oyster farm business plan for 
Kaipara Moana
•Participate in MPI/Council Aquaculture 
reforms relating to Tai Tokerau
•Consult Kaipara Moana Uri re Aqua-
culture development.
•Explore with Moana NZ the prospect 
of purchase.

Rongoā:
•Develop a proposal to enter the Ron-
goā/health and wellbeing industry.
•Continue to advance research in har-
akeke.
•Continue to work with Roche in assess-
ing various omega as pharmaceuticals.
 
Technology:
Continue to look for opportunities in this 
space.

Energy:
Continue to look for investment opportu-
nities in this space.
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Te Rūnanga has restructured its commercial 
operations to now come under a Limited 
Liability Company and a single board of 
directors. The new structure is more efficient 
in dealing with the Rūnanga commercial 
operations, and it will also be fit for purpose 
when Te Rūnanga transitions to the new 
PSGE. Decisions have also been made in 
relation to Te Toopu Ika, the Mandated Iwi 
Organisation established to receive, hold, 
and manage fishing assets allocated to the 
Rūnanga under the Sealord deal 1992. The 
commercial board will continue to manage 
the operational side of managing Te Toopu 
Ika, and the Rūnanga board will provide 
governance oversight. Te Toopu Ika will sit 
outside the PSGE structure once it’s put in 
place.

The commercial board segments its fishing 
assets and seeks out the best values using 
bench marking as a guide. The board have 
done extremely well in this area, having 
consistently achieved roughly 25% returns 
on asset values. 

A big part of managing the Iwi fishing as-
sets has been staying in touch with stock 
sustainability and industry issues. During the 
year we saw reductions to inshore catches 
(TACCs). Our rock lobster stocks were sig-
nificantly reduced by 16% to accommodate 
green pressures.  

An important piece of work that the board 
have been doing is establishing a kupenga 
for Ngāti Whātua marae and Te Tai Toker-
au iwi. The first major part was to establish 
Moana as a kupenga and that has been 
achieved. The next step, which we have 

been discussing with Moana recently, is to 
operationalise the kupenga. We will contin-
ue this mahi into the 2023-24 year. 
In addition to the kupenga, we have been 
seeking support from Te Tai Tokerau iwi 
and hapū for a review of the North Island 
Customary Regulations. The aim is to make 
them more enabling and relevant in today’s 
environment. It’s been 27 years since these 
regulations were imposed on North Island 
iwi by the Crown.

For 9 months the board supported Takitimu 
Seafoods in recovering from significant 
losses. Our commercial board managed 
to bring about stability for the company 
insofar as optimising value from their ACE 
in the same way as value is extracted for 
the Rūnanga ACE. The commercial board 
did not pursue potential investment in their 
operations.

Over time the commercial board is moving 
towards aquaculture to offset an anticipated 
decline in inshore fisheries owing to sector 
competition for these resources and a push 
by iwi to manage fisheries in accordance 
with a Te Kawa o Te Moana strategy. Prog-
ress in the aquaculture space, however, has 
been slow owing to the board putting most 
of its attention on fishing and housing issues.

The aquaculture space offers a lot of op-
portunity to develop and create wealth and 
jobs, but we must be very careful to ensure 
risks associated with investment in this area 
are adequately managed. The commercial 
board has already put in place stepping 
stones in relation to Kaipara Moana and 
aquaculture, and is developing broad in-
dustry, government, and iwi relationships in 
preparation for investing when the time is 
right. 



During the reporting year the board also 
considered buying Biomarine, the second 
largest oyster farmer in NZ, but in the end 
withdrew. Our discussions with the owners 
highlighted how Iwi can be taken advan-
tage of. In this case, the owners were asking 
for much more than what the business was 
worth (thinking we had lots of money to 
waste), and their expectation was we don’t 
do due diligence. We have seen this on sev-
eral fronts.

Housing is a significant part of the work 
that the commercial board is involved. The 
level of investment and need in this area has 
necessitated a well thought out strategy to 
guide the Rūnanga and commercial board 
in this area. Whānau having access to warm 
and affordable housing is one of the ma-
jor determinants of success. The strategy is 
focused on first home buyers, social housing, 
repairs and maintenance, and commercial 
properties. Providing for kaumatua housing 
is a priority as more than half our Ngā-
ti Whātua population move into this age 
group.    

Unitec has been a project that the board 
have been working on for at least 4 years 
now. There have been significant delays 
brought about by covid and more lately the 
Crown. These have meant this project has 
not progressed far since last year’s report. 
Having said this, the environment in which 
we have been operating since covid has 
caused a major decline in the demand for 
housing, so the Crown delays have prob-
ably worked in our favour. Once we have 
an agreement with the Crown on the length 
of the overall project, and peak funding 
requirements, the board can decide what if 
any investment they will make in the Unitec 
project. Through this project, the Rūnanga 
will have access to first homes and social 
housing to support Ngāti Whātua uri.

We have continued to assess properties 
in Dargaville and Whangārei. During the 
reporting period we were unable to make 
headway owing to planning issues and gov-
ernment priorities. MHUD played a major 
role in our assessments. The board did buy a 
property in central Whangārei and will build 
16 rental houses in the 2023-24 year. These 
3- and 4-bedroom homes will be available to 
rent to our uri that reside in Whangārei.  

In terms of financial capacity, the Rūnanga 
has reviewed its ability to resource invest-
ments. The review has highlighted the impor-
tance of due diligence and making sure any 
business investments provide the best returns 
when considering the broader range of po-
tential areas to invest and level of risk. There 
is only so much money to invest.
 
Regarding investments in Rongoa, technol-
ogy and energy, these are being treated as 
slow burn investments. As noted above, most 
of the board’s attention is focused on fishing 
and housing, and until these are bedded 
down, we will only do what we can in these 
other areas.

In relation to Rongoa, we have made steady 
progress in learning more about the oppor-
tunities with harakeke and we continue to 
form industry relationships. 

The commercial board has signed off a 
relationship agreement with an international 
company called Roche. The opportunity is 
for Ngāti Whātua to be involved in clinical 
trials and research relating to cancer treat-
ments and conditions impacting uri. These 
problems are majorly detrimental to our 
whānau so we want to do all we can to try 
make a difference. The board looks forward 
to learning more about Roche and the work 
they do, and how Ngāti Whātua can benefit 
from the relationship.
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A review of the commercial structure has 
been completed. 100% COMPLETED
 
Commercial fishing assets have been re-
valued and benchmarked against indus-
try values. 100% COMPLETED

Adequate progress is being made with 
Takitimu Seafoods to the extent options 
are available to invest into their online 
site. 100% COMPLETED

Input and participation have been 
chieved in industry and iwi/māori re-
views of fisheries sustainability.
100% COMPLETED

Improvements have been made to the 
Moana Pātaka regarding Tai Tokerau 
access. 100% COMPLETED

A review of Te Topu Ika has been 
achieved for the purposes of the new 
PSGE. 100% COMPLETED

A housing strategy has been completed 
and is being implemented to guide the 
activities of the commercial board.
80% COMPLETED

The Unitec investment has been assessed 
and recommendations have been put to 
Te Rūnanga. 80% COMPLETED

The investment in Mai Fund and Te Ka-
kano has been assessed and recommen-
dations have been made to Te Rūnanga. 
100% COMPLETED

The commercial board have provided 
due diligence support to WAI303 re-
garding settlement properties.
100% COMPLETED 

An aquaculture strategy has been de-
veloped. The commercial board have 
continued to input and participate in the 
development of a strategy for the whole 
of Tai Tokerau. 100% COMPLETED

The commercial board have assessed the 
acquisition of Biomarine with Moana NZ. 
100% COMPLETED

A rongoa strategy has been developed. 
100% COMPLETED

The commercial board and Roche have 
evaluated the use of harakeke oil.
50% COMPLETED 



DATA HUB 
Collect information to support the establishment of a 

housing environmental scan. 

Complete 2021-22 project:

•Train uri member to access IDI 
government information.

•Compile a detailed report cov-
ering housing and uri related 
information.

•Develop an environmental 
scan to support housing strate-
gy.

•Communicate project to uri.

•Make available final reports to 
PSGEs and uri.

•Report to Iwi Chairs and Minis-
ter final outcomes.

This project was driven by Tracy Walters, 
Manager of Whai Manawa LP, the commer-
cial arm of Te Rūnanga.

A comprehensive report was completed in 
2022. 

Relevant data was collected at a takiwa 
scale which makes the information more 
useable.

The data was used to inform the Rūnanga 
housing strategy, and more recently re-
search associated with education. The data 
can be used across much of the business of 
Te Rūnanga. An agreement was reached to 
enable Te Rūnanga to update the informa-
tion on an ongoing basis.

The National Iwi Chairs need to be acknowl-
edged for enabling the project to take place 
and providing funding through Statistics NZ.

The data hub project has been complet-
ed and all relevant information collected. 
100% COMPLETED

An environmental housing scan has been 
completed. 100% COMPLETED

Te Rūnanga understand how to access 
information through the IDI data base. 
100% COMPLETED

Uri have been kept informed of the 
progress made with the datahub project. 
100% COMPLETED

Relevant reports have been provided to 
the Minister and Iwi Chairs.
100% COMPLETED
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TE TOPU IKA
O NGĀTI WHĀTUA

Māori Fisheries

The Māori Fisheries Act 2004 requires the Rūnanga to report on the activi-
ties of Te Topu Ika o Ngāti Whātua. Kaupapa 7 of Schedule 7 of the Māori 
Fisheries Act needs the Rūnanga to be accountable for performance to all 
members of the iwi. As a result, the Rūnanga must report annually to its 
members as is set out below.

In 2006, the Rūnanga established He Topu Ika o Ngāti Whātua to receive 
fishing and aquaculture assets under the Treaty of Waitangi Fisheries Act 
and Aquaculture Settlement Act. Ngāti Whātua Fisheries, a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Rūnanga, manages these combined assets. The benefits 
derived from these assets are to benefit nga uri o Ngāti Whātua.

At the time Te Topu Ika was established  Te Roroa and Kawerau a Maki 
were included in Te Topu Ika. Therefore any benefits derived from Te Topu 
Ika also need to be made available to these iwi.





45



EDUCATION GRANT
Annual Report - Education Grant.
Below is an overview of the education grants approved and processed for the year 
2023. The following schedule is a detailed summary of grants given to each marae and 
the type of grant, whether it was tertiary and/or boarding school.

Summary Information for February 2023 to July 2023:
Total number of grant applications approved February to July 2023 = 77
Total amount of education grants processed February to July 2023 = $29,300

A summary of grants given to each Marae.
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2023 FINANCIAL
COMMENTARY

Pūrongo Rawa – Financial Position

•The group net assets (what the group owns less what it owes) increased by 27% to total $75.7 
million at 30 June 2023.

•The net surplus made by the group for the year is reflected in the overall increase in net as-
sets, particularly current assets. As the group’s revenue increases, the level of cash and debtors’ 
balances related to the increased contract revenue will also increase.

•The value of unlisted shares (Aotearoa Fisheries Limited) was written down due to the new 
accounting standards that require shares to be valued at fair value instead of cost, as was done 
in the previous year.  This is reflected in the reduction in other investments this year and was a 
non-cash adjustment.

Pūrongo Hua – Financial Performance

The group’s net surplus for the year was $16.3 million which is a 4.4% decrease from the previ-
ous year. The key impacts were as follows:

•The consolidated group experienced a significant increase in revenue, primarily due to in-
creased revenues from health and housing service contracts during the year. The revenue in-
creased by 19.4%. 

•Quota values had an increase in value of $265,854, which was a reversal of the previous 
year’s impairment/reduction in value. 

•In the year, the shares in Aotearoa Fisheries were written down by $1.8 million to reflect their 
fair market value.  This was a non-cash adjustment.





Ko ngā take taiao me te oranga o te whenua, te moana, te 
wai me ngā tamariki a Tāne ki roto i te rohe o Ngāti Whātua.

Kaitiakitanga is the ethics and practice of safeguarding and conserving the natural environment
and the resources we rely on mai ki uta ki tai – from the mountains to the great inland lakes, 
down the rivers to lagoons, estuaries to the sea. Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua have an obligation 
to care for the whenua and moana in which we whakapapa to.

KAITIAKITANGA
Environment and Natural Resources 



KAITIAKITANGA
Natural Resources Unit

Give effect to the values and aspirations of Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua as they relate to 
the protection and enhancement of rights and interests in te taiao and kaitiakitanga.

•Create the capacity to manage 
Kaitiakitanga and Natural Re-
source Unit

•Effectively engage with uri to 
identify their priorities.

•Make improvements to the 
contracts held with Auckland 
Council.

•Develop strong relationships 
with Auckland, Kaipara, and 
Whangārei Councils and North-
land Regional Council, Conser-
vation and Fisheries organisa-
tions.

•Support input to the Dome Val-
ley Waste Management Environ-
ment Court proceedings.

•Support moves to advance 
māori representation across 
Councils within the rohe of Ngā-
ti Whātua.

•Provide monthly uri communi-
cations

•Provide leadership in the im-
plementation of a freshwater 
management strategy for north-
ern water, using customary reg-
ulations.



51

Ihapera Paniora was engaged at the 
start of the financial year to support the 
Chief Executive manage the Kaitiakitan-
ga and Natural Resource Unit. Ihapera is 
a qualified lawyer.

Engaging with uri to identify and under-
stand their priorities has been ongoing. 

Major improvements to the contracts 
held with Auckland Council have been 
achieved. The work we do with Aukland 
Council is significantly more aligned with 
Te Rūnanga interests and annual plan-
ning, and financial benefits have been 
increased to more than $250,000 per 
annum.   

During the year we have built a closer 
working relationship with Auckland, Kai-
para, and Northland Councils, and to a 
lesser extent with Whangārei. Auckland 
and Northland have been productive 
while Kaipara has been quite difficult giv-
en their opposition towards things Māori.  
We have also participated in fisheries 
and conservation forums.

The Dome Valley hearing has been 
one of the biggest undertakings for the 
Rūnanga over the last 4 years. During 
the reporting period we held the last 
hearing in the Environment Court. Ngāti 
Whātua Ōrākei, Nga Maunga Whaka-
hii, and Te Uri o Hau were major contrib-
utors of evidence at the hearing.  

In relation to Māori representation on 
Council Boards, we were very active in 
our advocacy to achieve the best out-
comes for Ngāti Whātua and Iwi katoa. 
We participated in working groups and 
made written submissions to councils on 
the subject.

Freshwater issues have been at the fore-
front of political wranglings between 
councils, communities, government, and 
iwi.

A position is created and in place to sup-
port management of the Kaitiakitanga 
and Natural Resources Unit.
100% COMPLETED

Improvements have been made to the 
way in which the Rūnanga engage with 
Councils, and the delivery of contracts. 
100% COMPLETED

The Dome Valley hearings have been 
supported to the extent necessary. 
00% COMPLETED

Māori representation on the four councils 
with Te Tai Tokerau have been well sup-
ported. 100% COMPLETED

A high-level review of higher-level council 
plans has been undertaken.
100% COMPLETED

A freshwater strategy has been devel-
oped to protect waterways and fisheries.
Uri have been kept well informed of Kai-
tiaki and Natural Resource Unit progress. 
80% COMPLETED
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Mai Maunganui ki Tāmaki, mai te moana Tāpokopoko ā 
Tāwhaki ki Te Moana Nui ā Kiwa. Ko te rohe rangatira 
tēnei o Ngāti Whātua me ōna marae katoa.

ORANGA MARAE
Marae Development



ORANGA MARAE
Marae Development

Strengthen and Develop Marae.

•Create the capacity to manage 
marae project. 

•Update marae profiles

•Provide marae with the oppor-
tunity to do governance train-
ing.

•Identify options for providing 
marae with insurance.

•Undertake a needs analysis of 
all marae.

•Support marae to protect taon-
ga held on marae.

•In consultation with uri, devel-
op a policy to guide grants to 
marae.

•Identify opportunities for mar-
ae to develop business opportu-
nities.

•Support marae to participate 
in the verification of uri mem-
berships.

•Provide monthly uri communi-
cations.

Kingi Tuhiwai and James Barret were 
engaged in January to manage the mar-
ae project. Kingi leads the project and 
James provide support. 

Given the marae position was not put 
in place until halfway through the year, 
progress with delivery of the 2022-23 
annual plan has been limited. Nonethe-
less, some progress was made.

The updating and maintenance of mar-
ae profiles is essential as it enables the 
Rūnanga to engage with marae when 
required. The profiles are focused on 
identifying marae governors / executives 
and their contact details. In the 2023-24 
year the information will be checked with 
each marae for accuracy.

Insuring marae has been an ongoing 
problem for many marae. Most of the 
33 affiliated Ngatiwhatua marae are not 
insured because they cannot afford it. 

We have spoken to insurance providers, 
and we have considered our own insur-
ance programme. The problem is where 
does the money come from? The Rūnan-
ga believe marae individually and collec-
tively within each takiwa should consider 
establishing businesses that can generate 
income to pay insurance and mainte-
nance costs. This follows the model that is 
used by marae who do have insurance. 
The Rūnanga is open to looking at how 
they can help.
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The Rūnanga has not actively gone out 
to all marae to do a needs analysis. But 
it is very clear from the requests we have 
received from marae for grants, and 
our knowledge of marae needing main-
tenance, that the problems confronting 
our marae across the rohe is a big issue. 
Some marae are struggling to stay open 
owing to them requiring maintenance, 
which is potentially a bigger problem 
than insurance.

The Rūnanga has a policy for making 
available grants to marae and is largely 
based upon the availability of funds and 
merit. In the last year the board consid-
ered whether the marae applying had 
a PSGE and if they too were contribut-
ing. More work needs to be done in this 
space.

The role of marae in verifying uri who 
make application to become a member 
of the Rūnanga has been in place since 
the Rūnanga was established.  The real-
ity, however, is marae have increasing 
demands on their time and the role is not 
being done to a standard that may have 
existed in the past. The Rūnanga is con-
sidering whether financially incentivising 
marae will make a difference and enable 
the role to be fulfilled. The Rūnanga will 
test the option and ask marae for any ad-
ditional ideas during the 2023-24 year.  

Each applicant for membership needs 
to prove who they are. Verification must 
be obtained by the applicants from their 
primary marae, or from their takiwa rep-
resentative on the Rūnanga board.

Activities that were not undertaken 
during the 2022-23 year will be carries 
across to the 2023-24 year.

The capacity is in place to develop 
and implement a marae strategy.
100% COMPLETED

Options for marae insurance have 
been investigated and recommenda-
tions identified. 70% COMPLETED

Programmes have been implemented 
to support marae and their trustees.
0% COMPLETED

Marae are being supported in their 
role to verify uri memberships with Te 
Rūnanga. 0% COMPLETED

Marae are well informed of activities 
within Te Rūnanga. 0% COMPLETED







•Ensure the uri database is functional 
and is being maintained.

•Update registration and privacy 
policies.

•Put in place initiatives to update uri 
contacts and other information.

•Support 2023 trustee election by 
making available relevant informa-
tion.

•Support 2024 ratification process 
for WAI303.

DATA BASE:
To have a functional and reliable uri da-
tabase that is supported by good policy.

•Application forms have been standard-
ized.

•Uri registration policies have been up-
dated.

•Policies are consistent with Privacy Act 
legislation.

•Initiatives have been implemented to 
result in updated uri registration informa-
tion.

•Relevant information has been provid-
ed to Independent Elections Services in a 
timely manner. 

•Information has been provided to In-
dependent Elections Services to support 
ratification process.

•Review policies associated with ac-
cess to Kupenga

KUPENGA:
A functional Kupenga is inplace

to support hapū and marae.

•A guide on how much fish to allocate 
for hui mate has been completed.

•The packaging of Kupenga fish has 
been reviewed and applied.

•A review of the accountability process 
has been completed.

•A review of who can access the Kupen-
ga has been completed.

•Complete marae profiles.

•Undertake a high-level assessment 
of the conditions of marae buildings.
 
•Complete the development of a poli-
cy to guide grants to marae. 

•Complete insurance options paper 
to inform Ngāti Whātua marae. 

•Work with marae that require the 
support of TRONW to help create 
opportunities for social, cultural, and 
economic development. 

•Provide marae with the opportunity 
to do governance training. 

MARAE:
Strengthen andsupportour Marae.
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•A profile is created for each marae. 

•A policy is created to guide TRONW in 
the allocation of resources to marae. 

•Viable Insurance options are clearly 
identified.

•Marae have been consulted.

•Marae are supported in their develop-
ment. 
 
•Marae trustees and uri take up the 
opportunity to undertake governance 
training. 

•Marae are being supported in their 
role to verify our uri.

•Support marae to participate in the 
verification of uri memberships. 

MACA:
Te Rūnanga O Ngāti Whātua is prepared 
for the Whangārei hearings commencing 

February 2024.

•Secure resourcing from Te Arawhiti.

•Review affidavits submitted to the 
High Court by all MACA applicants 
and identify actions where appropri-
ate.

•Engage with marae and hapū in 
relation to MACA progress.

•Undertake further research to sup-
port the Ngāti Whātua/ Te Parawhau 
MACA applications

•Undertake further research to sup-
port the Ngāti Whātua/ Te Parawhau 
MACA applications.

•Work with ambitious claimants 
to determine their relevance in the 
Whangārei harbour.

•Prepare witnesses for hearings in-
cluding wananga and site visits.

•Participate in High Court MACA 
hearings scheduled for the first quar-
ter of 2024.

•We have funding for legal representa-
tion and advice.

•Te Rūnanga O Ngāti Whātua secures 
funding that supports our MACA claim.

•Develop processes to simplify funding 
applications.

•A full review of affidavits has been 
completed.

•Categorise affidavits that are support-
ive or non-supportive of our claim.

•An action plan has been created.

•Te Rūnanga O Ngāti Whātua have ac-
tively engaged with Marae and Hapū.

•Te Rūnanga O Ngāti Whātua has ad-
equate evidence to support a successful 
MACA claim.

•The Rūnanga have actively promoted 
collaboration amongst MACA applicants
Ambitious claims have been resolved to 
the extent possible.

•Witnesses are well supported.

•Witnesses are well prepared to give 
evidence in MACA hearing.

•Te Rūnanga O Ngāti Whātua has ade-
quately participated in the MACA hear-
ings.



•Develop an education strategy for 
Ngāti Whātua based on analysis, 
and in consultation with uri and Ngā-
ti Whātua entities.

•Complete research and the collec-
tion of data to underpin the educa-
tion portfolio.

•Work with iwi, hapū and marae to 
establish a Te Pukenga strategy for 
the Dargaville campus.

EDUCATION:
A clear strategy is inplaceto drive education

•PSGE’s, Marae, and the two northern 
takiwā have been consulted on the op-
portunity to work collaboratively in de-
veloping an education strategy for Ngāti 
Whātua.  
 
•The Ministry of Education has provided 
demographics that are relevant to Ngāti 
Whātua takiwā.

•Statistics NZ has provided information 
on the demographics of Ngāti Whātua 
uri and takiwā.
 
•Elections NZ has provided information 
on the demographics of Ngāti Whātua 
uri and takiwā.
 
•A review of previous Rūnanga strate-
gies has been undertaken.
 
•A full analysis has been undertaken of 
all relevant data that underpins the edu-
cation strategy.

•A collaboration has been formed with 
relevant iwi, hapū, and marae to provide 
governance to the Dargaville Campus.

•A strategy has been developed for the 
Dargaville Campus.

WAI 303:
•Resolve internal matters raised by 
Ngāti Whātua PSGEs.

Resolve:
•Overlapping claims.
•Patuharakeke withdrawal.
•Finalize a Post Settlement Structure 
for Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua.

•Consult with uri and run ratification 
process.

•PSGEs are supportive of the settlement 
proposal and PSGE structure being taken 
out for ratification.

•Manukapua, RFRs, and Kaipara Moa-
na issues have been resolved.

•Overlapping and mandate issues have 
been resolved to the extent required for 
Wai303 to be finalized with the Crown.

•Overlapping claims have been resolved 
to the satisfaction of Te Arawhiti.

•Patuharakeke mandate has been re-
solved.
•A PSGE proposal has been completed.
Ratification of the settlement offer has 
been completed.

•The settlement and new structure for the 
Rūnanga is supported.
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Hauora
Te Haa Oranga:

Through the provision and access to good 
health and social services, contribute to eq-
uitable access to services and outcomes for 

ngā uri o Ngāti Whātua, whānau Māori, and 
others in the rohe of Ngāti Whātua.

•Implement an updated Strategic 
Plan that is cognisant of, and in-
formed by, the priorities identified 
by whānau, whilst driving transfor-
mational change to health and social 
service delivery in Aotearoa.

•Strengthen meaningful partnerships 
between the Iwi and relevant Crown 
entities that impact on the health and 
wellbeing of whānau. 

•Contribute to the development and 
growth of the capacity, capabili-
ty, and resourcing for Māori health 
workforce, including clinical exper-
tise. 

•Investigate the opportunities to 
contribute to appropriate housing 
solutions for health-compromised 
whānau.
•Stand up the very first Iwi-led res-
idential facility prioritising whānau 
Māori reintegration back into their 
whānau, and the local community.

•Commence the establishment of a 
Hauora Hub in partnership with ap-
propriate Crown services to facilitate 
the hauora needs of whānau.

•Lead and/or advise National, Re-
gional, and Local health and social 
service strategies and projects.

•Te Hā Oranga invest in a data, in-
sights, and innovation exercise to 
understand the housing and men-
tal health needs of ngā uri o Ngāti 
Whātua.

•Develop a collaborative approach to 
the implementation of MOU agreements 
with relevant Crown entities that contrib-
ute to wellness.

•A Hauora development plan has been 
developed.

•A residential care facility has been 
established.

•A social housing initiative is under way.
Te Hā experience growth in our health 
workforce, particularly Nurse and Coun-
selling roles.

•Contracting for services shift to a more 
sustainable model with consideration for 
growth, infrastructure, and equity to ac-
curately reflect the true cost of business 
e.g., pay parity.

•Develop and deliver services that effec-
tively meet the health needs and priori-
ties of whānau.

•Ngāti Whātua provide expertise on 
National, Regional, and Local boards, 
advisories, and committees that influence 
and impact on whānau wellness.

•A five-year plan is developed that artic-
ulates the development of a Te Rūnanga 
o Ngāti Whātua owned, governed, and 
operated community Hauora Hub.

•Temporary housing solutions to accom-
modate health-compromised whānau are 
planned, initiated, and operating. 



•558 Transitional Housing units 
are held at 32 different sites at 1 
July 2023. Develop most sites for 
an identified population group 
who have known inequities in ac-
cessing social housing and related 
support services.

•Residential mental health ser-
vices will expand through the pur-
chase of an existing service with 
any future vacancies at this service 
being available for Māori.

•As part of the Māori Housing 
First collective, Arohanui ki te 
Tangata, we will establish an 
additional service to prevent or 
address chronic homelessness for 
Māori.

•Establish a regional Auckland 
supported accommodation service 
for 16 to 25-year-olds, accepting 
referrals from police & other gov-
ernment agencies 24/7.

•In partnership with Kainga Ora, 
we will commence Te Matawai, 
providing single site support-
ed accommodation in the inner 
city, with a goal of more than 
50% Māori being resident at this 
250-apartment complex.

•Two sites for post women’s refuge, 
one Māori & the other for Pacific 
women have been established.

•One site has been established as a 
post detox service for Māori & Pacific 
peoples.

•One site has been established for 
Māori & Pacific men, providing a pro-
gram for stopping whānau violence.

•Current disability units to focus on 
Māori & Pacific with short term dis-
ability or terminal care needs who are 
otherwise not receiving services from 
health or disability providers have 
been established.

•One site for people from Rainbow 
communities, as a pathway from our 
supported accommodation service, 
Ahuru Pumanawa has been estab-
lished.

•One site for young parents, comple-
mentary to the existing site for young 
mothers has been established.

•All other Transitional Housing sites 
for the opportunity to specialise for a 
targeted population group have been 
assessed.

Hauora
Kahui Tu Kaha:
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•Complete commercial strategy.

•Develop SIPO.

•Complete review of commer-
cial structure.

•Revalue shares in Moana NZ.

Whai Manawa 
Commercial

Corporate Responsibilities:

•An overarching commercial strategy 
has been completed. 

•A SIPO has been completed and 
approved by the Rūnanga board. 

A new commercial structure has been 
•put in place.

•The requirements of Te Topu Ika as 
part of the new PSGE structure are 
known and provided for.

•A revaluation of Moana NZ shares 
has been completed.

Fisheries:

•An assessment of potential buyers of 
inshore ACE has been completed, and 
the best buyer has been chosen.

•A dashboard showing the contri-
butions of each ACE class has been 
developed.

•Potential investment opportunities to 
buy and sell settlement quota shares 
has been completed.

•The opportunities for Moana NZ 
vessels to fish in Tai Tokerau and be 
part of supporting filling the Moana 
NZ Kupenga have been identified.

•Whai Manawa LP has been active 
in industry and iwi groups advocating 
fishing interests.

•CRA 1 non-settlement quota has 
been sold via tender process

•Lock in ACE arrangement for in-
shore finfish stocks

•Assess groupings of fish stocks 
for value and create a simple way 

to depict the information.

•Assess the potential to invest in 
treaty settlement stocks once the 
Māori Fisheries Act is signed off.

•Continue to work with Te Tai 
Tokerau iwi and Moana NZ in 
functionalizing the Moana NZ Ku-
penga.

•Continue to work with relevant 
external groups to advance Ngāti 
Whātua interests in fisheries.

•Divest CRA1 normal quota 
shares.



•Complete the purchase of Kent 
Road property for housing de-
velopment.

•Complete due diligence on 
Unitec property

•Complete due diligence on 
Dargaville Racecourse property.

•Complete work on establish-
ing Mai Fund.

Housing:

•Kent road property has been pur-
chased by Whai Manawa and build-
ing has commenced.

•Whai Manawa LP has completed 
due diligence on investment in Unitec 
and has decided whether to invest, 
and if so, what, and how.

•Final recommendations are made to 
Te Rūnanga Board regarding Unitec.

•Discussions have continued to be 
held with uri of the original māori 
landowners.

•Whai Manawa LP has done due dil-
igence on investing in the Dargaville 
Racecourse land and has decided 
whether to invest.

•Final recommendations are made 
to Te Rūnanga Board regarding Dar-
gaville Racecourse.

•JV arrangements have been con-
cluded with Mai Fund partners.

•Input and participate in Te Tai 
Tokerau Collaborative. 

•Ensure Ngāti Whātua Rights 
and interests under Aquaculture 
legislation are optimized.

•Attend national aquaculture 
forums to influence alignment 
with Ngāti Whātua aspirations.

•Liaise with Ngāti Whātua Mar-
ae regarding aquaculture in 
Kaipara Moana.

•Develop a high-level aquacul-
ture plan for Kaipara Moana.

Aquaculture:

•A Tai Tokerau collaborative has 
been established.

•A strategy has been developed for 
Te Tai Tokerau, including within the 
rohe of Ngāti Whātua.

•Whai Manawa LP has continued to 
participate in Te Ohu and MPI pro-
cesses associated with aquaculture.

•The optimum results for Ngāti 
Whātua have been achieved from the 
aquaculture settlement.

•Ngāti Whātua is abreast of aquacul-
ture development opportunities inside 
and outside NZ.

•Ngāti Whātua is building relevant 
relationships in its pursuit of being 
involved in aquaculture.
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•Whai Manawa is developing a rela-
tionship with Moana NZ to potentially 
partner with in Tio.

•Input has been sought from marae 
in the establishment of an aquaculture 
strategy for Ngāti Whātua.

•A high-level plan for a tio farm in 
Kaipara Moana has been created.

•Build strategic relations.
 
•Work with a partner to estab-
lish a model for primary pro-
duction of harakeke. 

•Potential products and ser-
vices have been identified.

•Maintain a watching brief on 
broader rongoa opportunities.

Rongoa:

•Partners have been identified and 
working relationships have been 
formed. 

•Whai Manawa is working with a 
potential partner to farm harakeke.

•A financial model has been estab-
lished to support the primary produc-
tion of harakeke.

•A comprehensive product and ser-
vices inventory has been developed.
 
•Whai Manawa has a good under-
standing of broader rongoa opportu-
nities and how these can be integrat-
ed into a rongoa business.

•Clarify direction of Fiber Net-
works

•Maintain a watching brief on 
technology investments.

•Establish relationships with or-
ganizations and individuals that 
can or have potential to align 
with Ngāti Whātua aspirations.

Technology:

•A clear partway forward in Fiber 
Networks has been developed.

•Whai Manawa have a good over-
view of new technologies.
 
•Whai Manawa is supporting 
whānau into science and technolo-
gy careers.

•A working relationship with Mc-
Dermid Institute is maintained.

•Whai Manawa has networks in 
place to support the work they do.



•Continue to make improve-
ments to Auckland, and North-
land Regional Council contracts.

•Continue to head off Waste 
Management in their strategy 
to align constraining legislation 
preventing landfills.

•Continue to input and partici-
pate in forums relating to māori 
representation on Councils with-
in the rohe of Ngāti Whātua.

•Keep abreast of resource man-
agement issues impacting all 
Ngāti Whātua.

•Stay abreast and respond to 
issues impacting the moana and 
fisheries.

•Assist the board in refining the 
future roles and responsibilities 
of the Kaitiaki and Natural Re-
sources unit.

Kaitiaki and Natural 
Resources Unit:

•Contracts with Auckland Council 
have been formalized.

•We have continued to engage with 
Northland Regional Council on im-
provements to engagement.

•We are engaged in Environment 
Court proceedings to oppose Waste 
Management.

•We have continued to advocate 
māori representation in various fo-
rums.

•We have been responsive to issues 
impacting all Ngāti Whātua.

•We have supported PSGEs and 
hapū where we have been asked to 
do so.

•We are responsive to issues impact-
ing marine and freshwater fisheries, 
and their environments.

•The future roles and responsibilities 
of the unit are clear.

•Review the Rūnanga involve-
ment in National Iwi Chairs.

•Develop a NICF communica-
tions plan.

•Develop a NICF funding and 
capacity building plan.

•Develop a NICF balanced score 
card which identifies and mea-
sures a range of issues includ-
ing how each Pou identifies its 
priorities and outcomes for the 
upcoming year.

•Future NICF Meetings with the 
Crown from 2023 and prioritis-
ing non-Crown related aspira-
tions.

•NICF Negotiations with Exter-
nal Parties to improve scope.

National Iwi Chairs:
Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua uphold a com-
mitment to supporting Te Kahu o Taonui.
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•Ensure the Rūnanga is achieving 
sufficient value from participating in 
NIC and that it is properly structured 
and resourced to achieve the best 
outcomes.

•That the Rūnanga are involved in the 
NICF communications plans.
That the Rūnanga contribute to fund-
ing and co-design.

•The Rūnanga support methods of 
evaluation.

•Ngāti Whātua benefit with represen-
tation at all levels of NICF.

•The Rūnanga support and benefit 
from all NICF Pou.

•Review the Rūnanga involve-
ment in Te Kahu o Taonui
Ensure access to capacity and 
capability from Te Kahu o Ta-
onui.

•Engage in Te Kahu o Taonui 
initiatives ensuring future proof-
ing for Ngāti Whātua.

•Ensure input into Oranga: 
Wairua, Whānau, Whenua and 
Taiao from Ngāti Whātua into 
Te Kahu o Taonui.

Te Kahu o Taonui:
Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua uphold a com-
mitment to supporting Te Kahu o Taonui.

•Participate in hui that deal 
with issues facing Te  Tai Toker-
au
Ensure opportunities for Ngāti 
Whātua whānau occur.

•A review of the Rūnanga involve-
ment qin Te Kahu o Taonui has been 
completed.

•Ensuring the Rūnanga builds capaci-
ty and capability from Te Kahu o Ta-
onui in expertise.

•Supporting initiatives that require iwi 
input and capitalising on that inputfor 
Ngāti Whātua.

•Ngāti Whātua whānau are benefit-
ing from key Te Kahu o Taonui strate-
gies.

•The Rūnanga take advantage of all 
opportunities presented in the coming 
year.



Communications:
Te Rūnanga is achieving open and 
clear communications with PSGEs, 
Marae, and uri.

•Review and update Rūnanga 
website.

•An informative and us-
er-friendly website for Te 
Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua and 
marae is maintained.

•Regularly update social media 
platforms with engaging con-
tent, event updates, and stories.
Build a social Media Platform, 
maintain and keep relevant.

•Collaborate with local newspa-
pers, radio stations, and televi-
sion to share news and events.
Lead and coordinate annual re-
porting and planning cycle de-
sign and graphics.

•Provide good communications 
in relation to Annual General 
and Special meetings.

•Create a quarterly news up-
date to Marae, hapū and
PSGEs.

•Create awareness amongst iwi 
of Wai303, the settlement offer, 
and the proposed new PSGE.

•Create awareness and partici-
pation in the Whangārei MACA 
case, and pending hearings in 
the High Court.

•Create awareness of the elec-
tions and encourage trustee 
nominations and voting, and 
profile candidate.

•Produce a mix of content, in-
cluding articles, videos, photos, 
and interviews, that showcases 
the culture, history, and ongo-
ing activities at each marae.

•Develop a communication 
plan.

•Rūnanga web site has been updated 
and made current. 

•Visibility, engagement, and com-
munity involvement for Te Rūnanga o 
Ngāti Whātua and its 32 marae has 
been enhanced.

•Communication channels between 
the Rūnanga, marae, and wider com-
munity have been enhanced.

•Awareness of cultural events, initia-
tives, and marae activities have been 
increased.

•Annuals reporting and planning has 
been achieved for the 2022-23/24 
years.

•Uri have been well informed about 
the 2022-23 annual general meeting 
and trustee elections.
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Te Rūnanga O Ngāti Whātua.
Purongo Hua Matapae (Profit & Loss Forecast)
For the Year Ended 30 June 2024:





Ko ngā pūrongo moni me ngā tahua pūtea a 
Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua. 

TAHUA PŪTEA
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Conso te t te ent o e e e o n e
e n n t t o
o t e e en e 3 ne 2 23

Legal name:               Te Rūnanga o Ngāti Whātua

Type of entity:           Registered Charity

Registration number: CC23988

Mission: To provide for the development of Ngati Whatua as a strong and caring iwi.  

Governance Structure:    

Te R nanga o Ng ti Wh tua is a ori Trust oard under the ori Trust oard Act The R nanga is a constituted ody
corporate nown as Te R nanga o Ng ti Wh tua and is governed y the Te R nanga o Ng ti Wh tua Act Ng ti Wh tua uri

eneficiaries elect eleven trustees who represent five t iwa districts within the rohe oundary of Ng ti Wh tua those
trustees govern for a period of three years efore the next elections occur

Operations Structure:

The anahaut CEO is appointed y and accounta le to the R nanga oard The Senior anagement Team is led y the
anahaut and comprised of a anu ura COO and managers through oth the Commercial arm Wh i anawa and the
ealth and well eing services Te a Oranga and ousing and ental ealth specialists hui T aha

Main Sources of Revenue for the Group

inistry of ealth Whatu Ora Te A a Whai Ora

inistry of ousing r an evelopment

inistry of Corrections

inistry of Social evelopment

Whanau Ora

Fishing uota

inistry of usiness Innovations Employment

Oranga Tamari i

The Group is committed to achieving positive outcomes for Ng ti Wh tua wh nau

This purpose is achieved through delivery of a num er of ealth and Well eing services to wh nau This is supplemented with
the use of fishing quota to promote commercial interest This supports the ey goals of the Group

To uphold Te otahitanga me Tino Rangatiratanga o Ng ti Wh tua under the guidance of our aum tua

2 To exercise the responsi ility of Tangata Whenua including that of the authorised voice of Ng ti Wh tua

3 To provide for the personal development of Ng ti Wh tua and other iwi within the rohe of Ng ti Wh tua

To provide for the caring of Ng ti Wh tua and other iwi within the rohe of Ng ti Wh tua

Consolidated Statement of Service Performance
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To provide for the economic development of Ng ti Wh tua and other iwi within the rohe of Ng ti Wh tua

To manage the affairs and finances of Ng ti Wh tua

The statement of service performance information focuses on these ey goals and a num er of udgements have een made
a out what information to present ased on an assessment of what information would e most appropriate and meaningful to
users This was a challenge due to the diverse nature of the group's activities and multiple funding streams as outlined

uring the 2 22 2 23 year

We mostly provided the same range of services for ealth and Well eing including a range of mental health services as in
previous years There was a growth in revenue of year on year

There was a movement from supported housing for youth in flatting arrangements to transitional housing for youth in
separate apartments together with a significant volume increase in youth housing

We egan the esta lishment of 'single site supported accommodation' at a large new pu lic housing complex at Greys Avenue
in Auc land's C and in partnership with inga Ora

We commenced delivery of the refugee resettlement service and at the early stage of the contract received an unexpected
increase in contracted volumes

There was increase in delivery of services providing mentoring counselling and s illset services for Rangatahi

2 23 2 22

o t ts
Group Revenue for the year 3 3

Group Surplus for the year 3 2

Group Equity at alance date 3

Education Grants Paid 3 2 22

ACE Income for the year 3 32

Social housing services are a mix of residential tenancies privately leased pu lic and transitional housing and inga Ora
leases and services are in Auc land and Whang rei The num er of social housing properties are as outlined elow

2 23 2 22

o o s n t o es e o o e t es
Permanent ousing

Residential ousing 3 3

Transitional ousing 2
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Conso te t te ent o Co e ens e
e en e n ense
e n n t t o
o t e e en e 3 ne 2 23

C
2 23

C
2 22

e en e
Revenue from Exchange Transactions 3 3 2

Revenue from Non Exchange Transactions 3 23 3

ot e en e 99 98 6 83 77 3 9

enses
Audit Fees 3

Communications 2 3

epreciation 3 2

Facilities 3 2 3 2

iscellaneous 2 2 3

Personnel 3 3 3 3

Services 3 2

Travel 2 2

ot enses 83 7 9 979 67 629

s e t e o e et n n n Costs n t e n o e enses 6 26 662 6 332 68

t e n o e enses
Reversal of Impairment of Intangi le Assets 2 3

Share of Associates' Surplus eficit 2 3 2 3

Gain oss on revaluation of financial assets at fair value 23 3

ot t e n o e enses 237 96 28 286

n n n
Finance Income 323 3

Finance Costs 2 3 2

et n n e Costs 3 9 253 8 735

ot Co e ens e e en e n ense o t e e 6 3 2 955 7 95 7

V i r g i n i a  W a r r i n e r

30/11/2023

Jo h n  M a r sd e n

30/11/2023
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Conso te t te ent o C n es n t
e n n t t o
o t e e en e 3 ne 2 23

C

2 23
alance uly 2 22 2 3 3 3

Total Comprehensive revenue expenses for the year 3 2 3 2

n e t 3 ne 2 23 36 9 75 759 586 75 795 995

C

2 22
alance uly 2 2 3 2 32 3 2 3 33

Total Comprehensive revenue expenses for the year

n e t 3 ne 2 22 36 9 59 6 63 59 53

These Financial Statements are to e read in con unction with the accompanying Notes These statements have een audited
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Conso te C s o t te ent
e n n t t o
o t e e en e 3 ne 2 23

C
2 23

C
2 22

C s o t te ent
C s o s o e t n t t es

C s s o e o
Receipts from Customers 3 3 3 2

Interest and ividends Received 23 2 3 23

Net Good Services Tax 2 2 2 2
ot C s s o e o 98 39 52 78 6 63

C s s e to
Payments to Suppliers Employees 3 323
ot C s s e to 83 7 66 8 323

ot C s o s o e t n t t es 5 3 5 7 5 2 32 8

C s o s o n est n t t es

C s s o e o
Sales of Property Plant Equipment 3 2
ot C s s o e o 7 399 56 92

C s s e to
Purchase of Property Plant Equipment 3 3

Term eposits 3 3
ot C s s e to 5 28 6 3 7 838 37

ot C s o s o n est n t t es 5 2 2 7 78 5

C s o s o n n n t t es

C s s e to
oans Issued 2 2
ot C s s e to 2 2 967

ot C s o s o n n n t t es 2 2 967

Net Increase ecrease in Cash eld 3 2 23

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Start of the ear 3 2 2

alance at the End of the ear 23 3 2

e esente C s n C s ents
an 2 2

Term eposits 2 2 323
ot C s n C s ents 23 686 987 3 728 9
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otes to t e Conso te n n t te ents
e n n t t o
o t e e en e 3 ne 2 23

e o t n nt t

Te Runanga O Ngati Whatua the Runanga was esta lished y the Te Runanga O Ngati Whatua Act and is governed y the
aori Trust oards Act It is domiciled in New ealand

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3 une 2 23 comprise the controlling entity and its controlled
entities together referred to as the 'Group' and individually as 'Group entities' The group entities are outlined in note

The primary o ective of the Runanga is to administer its assets in accordance with the provisions of the Trust oards Act for the
general enefit of its eneficiaries rather than ma ing a financial return

For the purposes of complying with generally accepted accounting practice in New ealand the Group are pu lic enefit
entities

2 s s o e t on

t te ent o Co n e

These financial statements have een prepared in accordance with section 3 of the aori Trust oards Act which
include the requirement to comply with New ealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice N GAAP

For the purposes of complying with N GAAP the Group is a pu lic enefit not for profit entity and is applying Tier
Not For Profit P E as it has expenditure of more than 3 million This report is in compliance with Tier Not For Profit P E
Standards The financial statements comply with New ealand equivalents to International Pu lic Sector Accounting Standards
N IPSAS and with the requirements of the Financial Reporting Act 2 3

Comparative figures included in the financial statements relate to the financial year ended 3 une 2 22

b asis of Measurement

The financial statements have een prepared on a historical cost asis except for assets and lia ilities as disclosed elow that
have een measured at fair value The accrual asis of accounting has een used unless otherwise stated and the financial
statements have een prepared on a going concern asis

e o nt n st tes n e ents

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with P E Standards requires management to ma e udgements estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets lia ilities revenue and
expenses Where material information on significant udgements estimates and assumptions is provided in the relevant
accounting policy or provided in the relevant note disclosure

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group are for the year ended 3 une 2 23

The estimates and underlying assumptions are ased on historical experience and various other factors elieved to e
reasona le under the circumstances Estimates are su ect to ongoing review and actual results may differ from these estimates
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in future years affected
The following are significant management udgements in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have a significant
effect on the financial statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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udgements
i  Control over Te Topu I a o Ngati Whatua Te Topu I a
Note 2 descri es that Te Topu I a is a Trust esta lished pursuant to the eed of Trust Te Topu I a o Ngati Whatua It was
esta lished as a mandated iwi organisation for the purposes of the aori Fisheries Act 2 The Runanga is the trustee of Te
Topu I a The Runanga has determined that control exists ecause it appoints all the trustees of the Trust who must e the same
trustees as the elected trustees of the Runanga
ii  Control over aitahi edia imited aitahi

Note 2 descri es that aitahi is a su sidiary of the Group even though the Group has only a ownership interest and has
only of the voting rights in aitahi The Runanga has determined that control exists ecause it appoints two of the three
directors and has significant influence over the costs of the company ecause the Runanga sets the annual license fee
chargea le to aitahi which accounts for approximately of its total cost

iii  Intangi le Assets having indefinite useful lives
Note descri es that uota is an intangi le asset representing the future economic enefits arising
from assets acquired that are not individually identified and separately recognised The Runanga has determined that Fish quota
has an indefinite useful live

iv  Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date the carrying amounts of tangi le and intangi le assets are reviewed to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment If any such indication exists for an asset the recovera le amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recovera le amount Impairment losses
directly reduce the carrying amount of assets and are recognised in the reported profit or loss

The estimated recovera le amount of an asset is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use alue in use is
determined y estimating future cash flows from the use and ultimate disposal of the asset and discounting to their present
value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current mar et rates and ris s specific to the asset For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash flows the recovera le amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset

elong

Any reversal of impairment previously recognised is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recovera le amount nor exceed the carrying amount that would have een determined net of depreciation had no impairment
loss een recognised for the asset in prior years

v  Collection of Receiva les

Estimates are used in determining the level of receiva les that may not e collected The Group has applied the simplified
approach to calculating expected credit losses on trade receiva les and recognises a dou tful de t ased on the lifetime
expected credit loss at each reporting date ad de ts are written off when they are considered to have ecome uncollecta le

There has een no uncollecta le de ts identified in the current or previous years and therefore no expected credit losses

esent t on C en

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in New ealand dollars N All values are rounded to the nearest N

There has een no change in the functional currency of the Group
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e C n es n o nt n o es

New and amended RS standards that are effective for the current year

Standards and amendments issued that are effective and have een adopted are

i S S inancial nstruments

In arch 2 2 the External Reporting oard R issued P E IPSAS Financial Instruments which supersedes oth P E IFRS
Financial Instruments and P E IPSAS 2 Financial Instruments Recognition and easurement

The main changes etween P E IPSAS 2 and P E IPSAS are

New financial asset classification requirements for determining whether an asset is measured at fair value or amortised cost

A new impairment model for financial assets ased on expected credit losses which may result in earlier recognition of
impairment losses
Revised hedge accounting requirements to etter reflect the management of ris s

P E IPSAS is effective from anuary 2 22 and was adopted y the Group in the current period

P E IPSAS introduces new recognition and measurement requirements for financial assets and restricts the a ility to
measure financial assets at amortised cost to only those assets that are held within a management model whose o ective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding In addition
measurement of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive revenue and expense is also restricted

P E IPSAS has had a material impact on the Group measurement and recognition of financial instruments

All classified availa le for sale financial assets have een reclassified to fair value through profit or loss

This change in standards has resulted in the requirement for unlisted shares previously measured at cost now eing measured at
Fair alue and included in the surplus deficit

PBE IPSAS 48 Service Performance Reporting

P E FRS replaces the service performance reporting requirements of P E IPSAS Presentation of Financial Statements and is
effective for the year ending 3 une 2 23

This new standard introduces high level requirements for Tier and Tier 2 P Es relating to service performance information The
standard requires the Group to provide the following information

the reason for the entity's existence what the entity aims to achieve over the medium to long term in road terms and
how it will go a out achieving this and
what the entity has done in order to achieve its roader aims and o ectives as stated a ove

The Group's statement of service performance can e found on pages to 2
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t n s ss e n ot et e t e n ot o te

There are no new revised or amended standards that have een issued ut are not yet effective that would have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements

s s o Conso t on

i Controlled ntities
Controlled entities are entities controlled y the Group eing where the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of another entity so as to enefit from that entity's activities The financial statements of the Group's
controlled entities are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases
Su sequent changes in a controlled entity that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions with
controllers of the controlling entity in their capacity as controllers within net assets equity
The financial statements of the controlled entities are prepared for the same reporting period as the controlling entity using
consistent accounting policies

ii ssociates
Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence ut not control over the financial and operating
policies Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Group holds etween 2 and of the voting power of another
entity

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognised initially at cost
The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of equity
accounted investees after ad ustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Group from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases
When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted investee the carrying amount of the investment
including any long term investments that form part thereof is reduced to ero and the recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has an o ligation or has made payments on ehalf of the investee

iii Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra group alances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra group transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements

nrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted associates are eliminated against the investment to the extent
of the Group's interest in the investee

nrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains ut only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment

iv Loss of control of a controlled entity
On the loss of control the group derecognises the assets and lia ilities of the controlled entity any minority interest and the
other components of net assets equity related to the controlled entity Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is
recognised in surplus or deficit
If the group retains any interest in the previously controlled entity then such interest is measured at fair value at the date that
control is lost Su sequently the retained interest is either accounted for as an equity accounted associate or an
availa le for sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained

e en e

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can e measured relia ly and it is pro a le that economic enefits will flow
to the Group and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receiva le
The following specific recognition criteria in relation to the Group's revenue streams must also e met efore revenue is
recognised
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i Revenue from e change transactions
Government Contracts and other Contracting Revenue
Revenue from contracting is recognised in surplus or deficit when earned and is reported in the financial period to which it
relates

The stage of completion is assessed y reference to milestones stipulated in the individual contracts Amounts received in
advance for services to e provided in future periods are recognised as a lia ility until such time as the service is provided

Sale of Annual Catch Entitlement
Revenue for the sale of annual catch entitlement is recognised when earned and reported in the financial period to which it
relates
Interest and ividend Income
Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method

ividend income is recognised when the dividend is declared
Rental Income
Rental Income arising from rental premises is accounted for on a straight line asis over the lease term

ii Revenue from non e change transactions 

Non exchange transactions are those where the Group receives an inflow of resources i e cash and other tangi le or intangi le
items ut provides no or nominal direct consideration in return

With the exception of services in ind inflows of resources from non exchange transactions are only recognised as assets where
oth

It is pro a le that the associated future economic enefit or service potential will flow to the entity and
Fair value is relia ly measura le

Inflows of resources from non exchange transactions that are recognised as assets are recognised as non exchange revenue to
the extent that a lia ility is not recognised in respect to the same inflow

ia ilities are recognised in relation to inflows of resources from non exchange transactions when there is a resulting present
o ligation as a result of the non exchange transactions where oth

It is pro a le that an outflow of resources em odying future economic enefit or service potential will e required to
settle the o ligation and

The amount of the o ligation can e relia ly estimated
The following specific recognition criteria in relation to the Group's non exchange transaction revenue streams must also e met

efore revenue is recognised

onations
The recognition of non exchange revenue from donations depends on the nature of any stipulations attached to the inflow of
resources received and whether this creates a lia ility i e present o ligation rather than the recognition of revenue
Stipulations that are 'conditions' do specifically require the Group to return the inflow of resources received if they are not
utilised in the way stipulated resulting in the recognition of a non exchange lia ility that is su sequently recognised as
non exchange revenue as and when the 'conditions' are satisfied
Stipulations that are 'restrictions' do not specifically require the Group to return the inflow of resources received if they are not
utilised in the way stipulated and therefore do not result in the recognition of a non exchange lia ility which results in the
immediate recognition of non exchange revenue

Non Exchange Government Contracts

When non exchange government contracts are received with delivera les outlined in the contract the revenue is recognised in
the surplus or deficit in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date nder this method
revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are provided with the final amount recognised upon
completion of the contract period
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n n nst ents

The Group initially recognises financial instruments when the Group ecomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument

The Group su sequently classified financial assets and lia ilities into those to e measured su sequently at fair value either
through other comprehensive income OCI or through surplus or deficit and those to e measured at amortised cost The
classification depends on the Group usiness model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows

The group has the following financial instruments

Financial assets Trade de tors and other receiva les Investments Term deposits Cash and cash equivalent classified at
amortised cost Investments in unlisted shares at fair value through surplus deficit

Financial lia ilities Trade creditors classified at amortised cost Cash and cash equivalents an overdrafts

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which su stantially all the ris s and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained y the Group is recognised
as a separate asset or lia ility

The Group derecognises a financial lia ility when its contractual o ligations are discharged cancelled or expire The Group also
derecognises financial assets and financial lia ilities when there has een significant changes to the terms and or the amount of
contractual payments to e received paid

A et at amorti e co t

These are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determina le payments that are not quoted in an active mar et After
initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision for impairment using
the expected credit loss approach iscounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial The Group's cash and
cash equivalents trade de tors and most other receiva les fall into this category of financial instruments

E pecte cre it o E

The group applied the simplified EC approach in measuring EC s receiva les have een grouped and assessed on a collective
asis as they possess shared credit ris characteristics They have then een grouped ased on the days past due A provision

matrix is then esta lished ased on historical credit loss experience ad usted for forward loo ing factors specific to the de tors
and the economic environment

ia i itie at amorti e co t

Financial lia ilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method except for financial lia ilities held for
trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss that are su sequently measured at fair value with gains or losses
recognised fair value through surplus deficit The Group's trade creditors fall into this category of financial instruments

A et at air a e

nlisted shares are valued at fair value through surplus deficit In the previous years these were valued at cost
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o ee ene ts

ort term em o ee ene its  
Employee enefits previously earned from past services that the Group expected to e settled within 2 months of reporting
date are measured ased on accrued entitlements at current rate of pays
These include salaries and wages accrued up to the reporting date and annual leave earned ut not yet ta en at the reporting
date
The group recognises a lia ility and an expense for onuses where they are contractually o liged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive o ligation

ong term ene its
Employees of the Group ecome eligi le for long service leave after a certain num er of years of employment depending on
their contract The lia ility for long service leave is recognised and measured as the present value of expected future payments
to e made in respect of services provided y employees up to the reporting date

C s o t te ent

Cash and Cash Equivalents means cash alances on hand in an accounts an overdrafts demand deposits and other highly
liquid investments in which the oard invests as part of its day to day cash management

Operating activities include cash received from all income sources and records the cash payments made for the supply of goods
and services

Investing activities are those activities relating to the acquisition and disposal of non current assets

Financing activities comprise the change in equity and de t capital structure of the oard

t on

The Runanga is a charita le organisation that has registered with the Charities Commission The entity is consequently exempt
from income tax under the Charities Act 2

Ngati Whatua oana oldings td Ngati Whatua oana uota td Tahi oldings td and Ngati Whatua Investments td are all
taxa le entities and account for income tax using the taxes paya le method All other entities included in the group financial
statements are registered with the Charities Commission and are exempt from income tax under the Charities Act 2

No allowance has een made for deferred tax due to accumulated losses in the group and the non taxa le status of the
Runanga
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o e t nt n ent

Property Plant and Equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation      
epreciation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a diminishing value asis some uildings are straight line over the estimated

useful lives of each component of property plant and equipment

The estimated useful lives and depreciation rates are

sset   epreciation Rate

ehicles 2 3

uildings 2

Computer Equipment 3

Furniture and Equipment 2

Plant Equipment

Office Equipment

 Recognition andmeasurement    
Items of property plant and equipment are initially measured at cost except those acquired through non exchange transactions
which are instead measured at fair value as their deemed cost at initial recognition

eritage assets with no future economic enefit or service potential other than their heritage value are not recognised in the
statement of financial position

All of the Group's items of property plant and equipment are su sequently measured in accordance with the cost model

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attri uta le to the acquisition of the asset The cost of self constructed assets includes
the following

The cost of materials and direct la our
Costs directly attri uta le to ringing the assets to a wor ing condition for their intended use

When the Group has an o ligation to remove the asset or restore the site an estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and
Capitalised orrowing costs

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment

When parts of an item of property plant and equipment have different useful lives they are accounted for as separate items
ma or components of property plant and equipment

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property plant and equipment calculated as the difference etween the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item is recognised in surplus or deficit

n nt n e ssets

uota is an intangi le asset representing the future economic enefits arising from assets acquired that
are not individually identified and separately recognised uota has een identified as an intangi le asset with indefinite
useful life

Recognition andmeasurement.              
Intangi le assets with indefinite useful lives are initially measured at cost and are tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangi le asset may e impaired
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o oo s e es

These financial statements have een prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of accounts receiva le and accounts
paya le which are stated with GST included Where GST input tax is irrecovera le then it is recognised as part of the cost of the
related asset or expense

The net GST paid to or received from the IR including the GST relating to investing and financing activities classified as an
operating cash flow in the statements of cash flows

e se ssets

eases where the Group assumes su stantially all the ris s and reward incidental to ownership of the leased assets are
classified as finance leases All other leases are classified as operating leases

pon initial recognition finance leased assets are measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of minimum leased payments at inception of the lease A matching lia ility is recognised for minimum lease payment
o ligations excluding the effective interest expense Su sequent to initial recognition the asset is accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy applica le to the asset

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the surplus or deficit on a straight line asis over the term of the lease
ease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense over the term of the lease Associated

costs such as maintenance and insurance are expensed as incurred

ense e o n t on

Grant penditure      

Non discretionary grants are those grants awarded if the grant application meets the specified criteria and are recognised as
expenditure when an application that meets the specified criteria for the grant has een received

iscretionary grants are those grants where the Runanga has no o ligation to award on receipt of the grant application and are
recognised as expenditure when approved y the trustees and the approval has een communicated to the applicant The
grants awarded have no su stantive conditions attached
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o s on

Provisions are recognised when the Group has an o ligation which can e relia ly measured at alance date as a result of a past
event and it is pro a le that the Group will e required to settle the o ligation

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to e reim ursed the reim ursement is recognised as a separate asset only
when the reim ursement is virtually certain The expense relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of any
reim ursement i e insurance settlement

Provisions are measured at the present value of management s est estimate of the expenditure required to settle the o ligation
at alance date ovements in the est estimate are recorded in profit or loss

ia ilities for wages and salaries including non monetary enefits and annual leave expected to e settled within 2 months of
the reporting date are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the reporting date They are measured at the amounts
expected to e paid when the lia ilities are settled

s e n t e e e es

Trade de tors are amount due from customers for goods sold and services performed in the ordinary course of usiness If
collection is expected in one year or less they are classified as current assets If not they are presented as non current assets

Trade de tors and other receiva les are measured at their cost less any provision for impairment using the expected credit loss
approach

t e n t e es

ra e Pa a e

Creditors are recognised at amounts to e paid in the future for goods and services already received whether or not illed to the
Group They are non interest earing and are normally settled on 3 day terms

ontract ia i itie eferre Reven e

nearned income is held on the alance Sheet as a lia ility and classified as deferred revenue in advance until such time as it
can e classified as meeting the definition of revenue

e t

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial lia ility
or financial asset

Ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments

Retained earnings include all current and prior period retained profits or losses
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o oo s e es

These financial statements have een prepared exclusive of GST with the exception of accounts receiva le and accounts
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C
2 23

C
2 22

3 e en e
e en e o n e ns t ons
Government Contracts 23 3 33

Rental and Royalties 22

Other Contracting Revenue 2 2

Other Income 3 3

Sale of Annual Catch Entitlement 3 32
ot e en e o n e ns t ons 98 75 3 82 57 9

e en e o on n e ns t ons
onations Received 2

Government Contracts Non Exchange 22

Other revenue 3
ot e en e o on n e ns t ons 23 538 9 5 89

ot 99 98 6 83 77 3 9

C
2 23

C
2 22

et n n e
n n e n o e

ividends received 3 2 2 2

Interest Received 2 23
ot n n e n o e 323 355 89 8

n n e ense
Interest an 2 3 32

Interest ire Purchase charges
ot n n e ense 2 7 372

ot et n n e 3 9 253 8 735
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C
2 23

C
2 22

5 e on t on o o e t n s o s to net s s
Net surplus deficit 3 2

st ent o non s te s
epreciation 3 3 3 2 33

Impairment Reversal of Impairment of Intangi le Asset 2 3

oss gain on revaluation of financial assets at fair value 23 3

oss on disposal of assets 2 2

ividends 3

Other Revenue 2

Share of associates loss gain 2 2 3

st ents o o e ents n
Increase decrease in e tors and Other Receiva les 3 33 3

Increase decrease in Prepayments 332 3 2

Increase decrease in Investments 3 3

Increase decrease in Taxation 3

Increase decrease in oans 2 2

Increase decrease in Property Plant and Equipment 3

Increase decrease in Creditor and Other Paya les 3 2

Increase decrease in Revenue Received in Advance 2 2 3

Increase decrease in Employee Costs Paya le 3 2

Increase decrease in Wor in Progress 2

Net operating cash inflow outflow 3 2 23

C
2 23

C
2 22

6 C s n C s ents
Cash at an and on and 2 2 2

Call eposits 2 2 323

ot C s n C s ents 23 686 988 3 755 528

The total value of cash and cash equivalents that are availa le for use y the Group is 23 22 2 22 3
This included funds held on ehalf of 2 22 as per note
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C
2 23

C
2 22

7 e to s n t e e e es
Trade e tors 2 3 2 3

Provision For ou tful e ts

Sundry e tors 22 3 3 3

Accrued Interest Receiva le 223 3 3

ot e to s n t e e e es 6 3 55 2 96 98

8 e to s n ot e e e es

As at 3 une 2 23 and 3 une 2 22 the Group had an allowance for credit losses of nil with regard to trade de tors No trade
de tors were written off during the year ended 3 une 2 23 2 22 3 All trade and other receiva les are from exchange
transactions

C
2 23

C
2 22

9 o e t nt n ent
and uildings 2 3 32

Computer Equipment 33 3

Furniture and Fittings 2 3

Plant Equipment 3 2

otor ehicles 3 2 3 3 2

Office Equipment 2 2

ot o e t nt n ent 5 856 922 2 883 729

 Consolidated
ear ended 3
une 2 23

Land
uildings

Computer
uipment

urniture
uipment

lant
uipment

Office
uipment

Motor
ehicles

Total

Cost as at uly
2 2

2 2 3 3 2 2 3 3 2 2 3

Additions 23 3 2 22 2 2

isposals 3 23 2 2 3 3 3 2

alance at 3
une 2 22

 8 23 2 2 2 3 2   9   8 98   8 8

Additions 2 2 3 2 3 3 22 2 3 2 33

isposals 2 3 3 3 2

  alance at 3
une 2 23

  3 8   23  2 9   9 8 32 9 8 8 22 322
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  ear ended 3
une 2 22

 Land
uildings

 Computer
uipment

  urniture
uipment

lant
uipment

Office
uipment

Motor
ehicles

 Total

Cost as at
uly 2 2

3 3 33 23 3 3 2

epreciation 2 22 2 23 2 3 3

isposals 2 3 3 32 2

alance at 3
une 2 22

  23   9   8   3  29 98   833 9   8

epreciation 3 2 22 3 3 3 2 3 3

isposals 2 3

alance at 3
une 2 23

3 332 2 3 2 3 3 2 2 2 2

Net Carrying
mount

9 8 8 33 3 2 9 8 2 2 3 39   8 923

Property Plant and Equipment is valued at cost less accumulated depreciation

There are no restrictions over the title of the groups assets

Te Runanga o Ngati Whatua Security eld

Registered first mortgage over property situated at Rendall Place Eden Terrace Auc land Certificate of Title Num er
NA 2

C
2 23

C
2 22

nt n es
nt n es

Opening Intangi le 3 3

Reversal of Impairment 2 3
ot nt n es 7 638 3 88 78

ot nt n es 7 638 3 88 78

N P E IPSAS 3 Intangi le Assets required intangi le assets to e measured using the cost model or the revaluation model
Intangi le assets can e carried at revalued amount only if fair value can e determined y reference to an active mar et As no
active mar et exists for the treaty quota the quota owned y Ngati Whatua Fisheries imited it is carried at cost

The quota owned y Ngati Whatua oana uota imited has een assessed for impairment in the 2 23 financial year there was
a reversal of impairment of 2 reversal of impairment in the 2 22 year 3 The assessment of quota value was
using the value the uota was sold for in Septem er 2 23
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o nt t es

                                                                         Ownership nterest

  ntity  Main ctivity  Country of
ncorporation

  alance ate  2 23   2 22

Te Topu I a o Ngati Whatua Charita le purposes N 3 une N A N A

Ngati Whatua Fisheries imited Asset olding
Company

N 3 une

Ngati Whatua Investments
imited

Investment N 3 une

Tahi oldings imited Office Administration N 3 une

aitahi edia imited Radio roadcasting N 3 une

Ngati Whatua oana oldings
imited

Investment N 3 une

Ngati Whatua oana uota
imited

Investment N 3 une

Affinity Services Charita le
Trust

ealthcare Services N 3 une

ahui Tu aha imited     ealthcare Services N 3 une

ent Road imited Partnership Social ousing N 3 une

Whai anawa GP imited Investment N 3 une

Whai anawa oldings imited
Partnership

Investment N 3 une

 i Te Topu a o Ngati Whatua Te Topu a
It was esta lished as a mandated iwi organisation for the purposes of the aori Fisheries Act 2 The Runanga is the trustee of
Te Topu I a The Runanga has determined that control exists ecause it appoints all the trustees of the Trust who must e the
same trustees as the elected trustees of the Runanga

 ii Maitahi Media Limited Maitahi    
aitahi edia imited is a owned su sidiary of the Runanga although the controlling entity does not hold a ma ority of the

ownership interest in the Company it has determined that control exists ecause it appoints two of the three directors and has
significant influence over the cost of the company ecause the Runanga as licence holder sets the annual licence fee chargea le
to aitahi which accounts for approximately of its annual cost

 iii ffinity Services Charitable Trust and ahui Tu aha Limited reviously ffinity Services Limited  
On Novem er 2 the Runanga too over control of Affinity Services Charita le Trust Net equity in the Affinity Group was

22 2 on the Novem er 2 Affinity Services Charita le Trust owns shares in Affinity Services imited who provides
healthcare services
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C
2 23

C
2 22

2 t o nte n estees
n est ent o te

Profit oss for the period 3
ot n est ent o te 73 6 866

n est ent e o te
Profit oss for the period 2 33

ividends Received
ot n est ent e o te 78 99 33 5 8

ot t o nte n estees 2 9 572 5 38

C
2 23

C
2 22

t o nte n estees n o e
Profit oss apai Te auora Tapui imited 2 33

Profit oss o ai Nu u imited 3

ot t o nte n estees n o e 3 9 572 5 38

There were no contingent lia ilities in relation to the groups associates as at reporting date 2 22 nil
There were dividends received in relation to the group associates in the 2 23 year of 2 22 nil

uity ccounted nvestee
The carrying amounts shown in the Statement of Financial Position are as follows

Summarised inancial
nformation of uity
ccounting ntities

  ssets  Liabilities  Revenues   rofit Loss  Group
nterest

Group Share of
rofit Loss

apai Te auora Tapui
imited

3 2 2 3 33 3 3 2 33 2

o ai Nu u imited 3 2 2 2 3 33 3

 Total 3 9 2

  ntity  Main ctivity Country of
ncorporation

alance ate  2 22  2 2

apai Te auora Tapui
imited

ealth Services N 3 une 33 33 33 33

Taito erau
Communications imited

Communications N 3 une 33 33 33 33

Taito erau Fi re Networ s
imited

Communications N 3 arch 33 33

o ai Nu u imited Cultural Environment
Advisory Services

N 3 une 33 33 33 33
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i Taito erau Communications Limited
The 2 22 and 2 23 figures are incomplete as financial results for Taito erau Networ s imited Special Partnership are not
availa le This has no financial impact in the current year as the Group per its accounting policy had already reduced its carrying
amount to ero in 2 and has discontinued recognising any future losses Refer to note ii Taito erau Communications

imited did not trade during the 2 22 and 2 23 financial year and no financial statements have een prepared

ii Taito erau ibre Networ s Limited    
This company was incorporated on the th arch 2 ut did not start trading until the th ecem er 2 The Runanga via
one of its fully owned su sidiaries Ngati Whatua Investments imited has a 33 share of the company anagement financial
statements for the Taito erau Fi re Networ s imited have een provided to anuary 2 2 and financial statements for the
2 2 year Taito erau Fi re Networ s imited has made significant losses and the groups investment in the Taito erau Fi re
Networ s imited has een impaired to Nil

 iii o ai Nu u Limited o ai
The a ove company is a 33 33 owned associate of the Runanga The Runanga does not consider that control exists as the
Runanga only appoints one of the three company directors

o ai Nu u imited had a net profit for the year ended 3 une 2 23 of 2 3 No dividends were received in the 2 23 year

iv āpai Te auora Tāpui Limited      

The a ove company is a 33 33 owned associate of the Runanga The Runanga does not consider that control exists as the
Runanga only appoints one of the three company directors

pai Te auora T pui imited had a net profit for the year ended 3 une 2 23 of 3 3 2 ividends of were
received in the 2 23 year 2 22 year nil

C
2 23

C
2 22

3 e te t ns t ons
Contract Revenue Received apai Te auora

ot e te t ns t ons 75 75

C
2 23

C
2 22

n est ents
n est ents o t se Cost

Term eposits 22 2
ot n est ents o t se Cost 9 65 22 8 628 88

n est ents e t o s s e t
Income Shares Aotearoa Fisheries td 2 2
ot n est ents e t o s s e t 2 8 8 567 6 95

ot n est ents 2 883 788 23 27 835

nvestments classified as fair value through surplus deficit TS

Investments in unlisted entities are classified under this category y the Group At each reporting date investments are
measured at fair value and any gain or loss arising from this change in fair value is recognised in the surplus deficit

anagement assesses fair value at year end ta ing into account comparison to valuations from other Iwi for oana New ealand
shares and other external sources of information regarding oana New ealand's current situation and future pro ections
There was a decrease in fair value of 23 3 resulting

oana New ealand declared a pro rata onus share issue The reason for this share issue was to release excess aori Authority
Tax Credits to shareholders to o tain a tax or cash enefit from the tax credits The su sidiary Ngati Whatua Fisheres imited
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now holds 2 shares in oana N 2 22 3 2

nvestments at amortised cost

Term deposits have interest rates ranging from per annum to 3 per annum and are all maturing within the next 2
months The term deposits are held with an of New ealand and AN an New ealand

C
2 23

C
2 22

5 t e e e es
oan argaville Racing Clu 2

ot t e e e es 2

oan argaville Racing Clu is recognised at Amortised Cost The loan has a term of three years with interest charged on the
loan at per annum on maturity

C
2 23

C
2 22

6 C e to s t e es
Accounts Paya le 3 22 2 3 3

Accrued Expenses 2 32 2

ot C e to s t e es 3 52 56 2 75 3

Creditors and other paya les are non interest earing and are normally settled on 3 day terms

C
2 23

C
2 22

7 o ee nt t e ents
Accrued Wages and PA E 22 3

oliday Pay Accrual 2

ong Service eave 2 3 3

Sic eave Accrual 2 2 2 2

ot o ee nt t e ents 2 2 6 6 9 2 292 8

8 n s e on e

The Group holds funds on ehalf of 2 22 for aipara ar our anagement Wor ing group WG As WG is
not a registered entity a requirement of its government clients WG approached the Runanga to act as its um rella entity
which the Runanga agreed to do The Runanga also provides ureau services to the Group
The Group also holds funds on ehalf of for the Iwi Chairpersons ui 2 22

C
2 23

C
2 22

9 e en e e e e n n e o n e ns t ons
Income Received In Advance 3 3 3 3

ot e en e e e e n n e o n e ns t ons 3 57 39 3 77 93
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i Taito erau Communications Limited
The 2 22 and 2 23 figures are incomplete as financial results for Taito erau Networ s imited Special Partnership are not
availa le This has no financial impact in the current year as the Group per its accounting policy had already reduced its carrying
amount to ero in 2 and has discontinued recognising any future losses Refer to note ii Taito erau Communications

imited did not trade during the 2 22 and 2 23 financial year and no financial statements have een prepared

ii Taito erau ibre Networ s Limited    
This company was incorporated on the th arch 2 ut did not start trading until the th ecem er 2 The Runanga via
one of its fully owned su sidiaries Ngati Whatua Investments imited has a 33 share of the company anagement financial
statements for the Taito erau Fi re Networ s imited have een provided to anuary 2 2 and financial statements for the
2 2 year Taito erau Fi re Networ s imited has made significant losses and the groups investment in the Taito erau Fi re
Networ s imited has een impaired to Nil

 iii o ai Nu u Limited o ai
The a ove company is a 33 33 owned associate of the Runanga The Runanga does not consider that control exists as the
Runanga only appoints one of the three company directors

o ai Nu u imited had a net profit for the year ended 3 une 2 23 of 2 3 No dividends were received in the 2 23 year

iv āpai Te auora Tāpui Limited      

The a ove company is a 33 33 owned associate of the Runanga The Runanga does not consider that control exists as the
Runanga only appoints one of the three company directors

pai Te auora T pui imited had a net profit for the year ended 3 une 2 23 of 3 3 2 ividends of were
received in the 2 23 year 2 22 year nil

C
2 23

C
2 22

3 e te t ns t ons
Contract Revenue Received apai Te auora

ot e te t ns t ons 75 75

C
2 23

C
2 22

n est ents
n est ents o t se Cost

Term eposits 22 2
ot n est ents o t se Cost 9 65 22 8 628 88

n est ents e t o s s e t
Income Shares Aotearoa Fisheries td 2 2
ot n est ents e t o s s e t 2 8 8 567 6 95

ot n est ents 2 883 788 23 27 835

nvestments classified as fair value through surplus deficit TS

Investments in unlisted entities are classified under this category y the Group At each reporting date investments are
measured at fair value and any gain or loss arising from this change in fair value is recognised in the surplus deficit

anagement assesses fair value at year end ta ing into account comparison to valuations from other Iwi for oana New ealand
shares and other external sources of information regarding oana New ealand's current situation and future pro ections
There was a decrease in fair value of 23 3 resulting

oana New ealand declared a pro rata onus share issue The reason for this share issue was to release excess aori Authority
Tax Credits to shareholders to o tain a tax or cash enefit from the tax credits The su sidiary Ngati Whatua Fisheres imited
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2 t on

Te Runanga O Ngati Whatua is exempt from paying Income Tax as it is a registered charity with the Charities Commission No
ia ility for income tax has een provided for this Entity Some su sidiaries of the Group are required to pay income tax There is

no tax lia ility for the current year

C
2 23

C
2 22

t on
Resident Withholding Tax Paid 2

aori Authority Tax Credits 22 3 2 3

ot t on 399 866 78 2

 2 23  2 22

Tahi oldings Limited

oss to carry forward 2 2 23 2

Ngati Whatua nvestments Limited

oss to carry forward 22 3

Imputation Credit Account alance 3 3

 Ngati Whatua isheries Limited

aori Authority Credits Claima le 22 3 2 3

 Ngati Whatua Moana oldings Limited

oss to carry forward 22

Imputation Credit Account alance 3 32 2

 Ngati Whatua Moana uota Limited

oss to carry forward 2 2 33

2 Cont n ent t es

As at 3 une 2 23 there were no contingent assets or lia ilities 2 22 nil

C
2 23

C
2 22

22 ns t ons t e n e ent e sonne
irectors Fees

Senior anagement FTE 2 3 3

Num er of irectors

ot ns t ons t e n e ent e sonne 7 33 6 9 5
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C
2 23

C
2 22

23 st o e e ees
Total oard em er Fees Paid 3 2

Num er of Trustees

No trustees of the entity has since the election of the oard received or ecome entitled to receive a enefit except for oard
mem er fees and travel allowance as approved y the inister of aori Affairs

2 e se Co t ents

The future non cancella le minimum lease payments of operating leases as lessee at reporting date are detailed
in the ta le elow

C
2 23

C
2 22

e o o n e se o t ents e ste t n e te
Not later than one year 2 3 2

ater than one year ut not later than years 3 3 3 3

ore than five years 2 3 2 2

ot 92 267 552 77 3 6 667

ost of the Runanga leases can e renewed with rents set y reference to current mar et rates for items of equivalent age and
condition Operating leases held over properties give the Runanga the right to renew the lease su ect to a predetermination of
the lease rental y the lesser

ahui Tu aha imited leases properties that are utilised in the provision of their services Operating leases held over properties
give ahui Tu aha the right to renew the lease su ect to a predetermination of the lease rental y the lesser These properties
are su ect to su leases to ahui Tu aha imited clients

ahui Tu aha imited also has rental properties on a periodic tenancy arrangement with ousing New ealand These tenancy
agreements are su ect to 2 days notice The lia ility for 2 days is 2 22 2

uring the year ended 3 une 2 23 2 33 2 22 2 2 2 was recognised as an expense within facilities in the
statement of comprehensive income is respect of operating leases and rental

Prior year comparatives as at 3 une 2 22 have een restated to reflect the actual operating lease commitments The
previously reported num er for Not later than one year ater than one year ut not later than five years and ore than five years
were 2 33 2 and 2 3 respectively
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25 n n nst ents

inancial ris s management

The Group has exposure to the following ris s arising from financial instruments

Credit ris
Interest Rate Ris

a Ris management framewor

The Groups Trustees has overall responsi ility for the esta lishment and oversight of the ris management policies
anagement reports regularly to the oard of Trustees on its activities

The Groups ris management policies are esta lished to identify and analyse the ris s faced y the Group to set appropriate
ris limits and controls and to monitor ris s and adherence to limits Ris management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in the mar et conditions and the Groups activities The Group through its training and management
standards and procedures aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and o ligations

b Credit ris

Credit ris is the ris of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual o ligations and arises principally from the Groups receiva les from customers The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure

Trade debtors and other receivables

Impairment loss on trade de tors and other receiva les recognised in surplus or deficit was Nil 2 22 Nil

Over of the Groups Trade de tors and other receiva les are with the New ealand central and local government agencies
and well esta lished corporates and not for profit organisations The remaining de tors are with other entities

The Groups exposure to credit ris is influenced mainly y the individual characteristics of each customer owever
management also considers the factors that may influence the credit ris of its customer ase including the default ris of the
different customer types

Trade de tors and other receiva les with the New ealand central and local government agencies have little ris There are
multiple means to collect outstanding de tors ut if unsuccessful the Group will go through a formal impairment process and
impair unrecovera le de tors

c nterest Rate Ris

Cash and cash equivalents The Group held cash and cash equivalents of 23 million at 3 une 2 23 2 22 3 million and
term deposits of m million as at 3 une 2 23 2 22 m The cash and cash equivalents are held with a ma or New

ealand an s which are rated A to AA ased on Standard Poor's oody's and Fitch credit ratings The interest earned is as
determined y the an er The ey driver of interest income to the Group is an rates and amounts on deposit

The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents and term deposits have low interest rate ris ased on the historically
low interest rates and that they are currently trending upwards

There have een no changes to ris s from the previous period
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n n ssets

Note S S 29  S S   2 23  2 22   Level of fair
value hierarchy

Cash and cash
equivalent

oans
receiva les

Amortised
Cost

23 3 2

Investments   eld to maturity Amortised Cost 22 2

Investments in unlisted
shares

eld to maturity Fair alue TS 2 2

e tors and other
receiva le

oans
receiva les

Amortised Cost 3 2

Other receiva les Amortised
Cost

2

Total 2 2 33 9 99

n n tes

Note S S 29 S S 2 23 2 22  Level of fairy
value hierarchy

Creditors and other
paya les

oans paya les Amortised Cost 3 2 2 3

Total  3 2 2 3

Note There was no impact to opening retained earnings as a result of transition to P E PSAS

air alues

The fair value hierarchy presented in the ta les a ove disaggregates fair value into the following three levels

evel uoted unad usted prices in active mar ets for identical instruments

evel 2 Inputs that are not level that are o serva le either directly or indirectly

Fair value determination for level 2 financial instruments disclosed a ove are as follows

Other Investments unlisted entities Fair values are determined y review of pu licly availa le information and management
assessments ey inputs and assumptions used in the valuation include nlisted entity will continue as a going concern and
the unlisted entity will continue to provide a return in the future and pu licly availa le information is an accurate assessment of
the fair value

C
2 23

C
2 22

26 C t ese es
Share Capital Reserve 3 3

ot C t ese es 36 9 36 9
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Capital Reserves comprise of the of Share Capital Reserve from aitahi edia imited

27 se ent ents

In August 2 23 hui T aha owned su sidiary entered into agreements to purchase usiness assets from an Auc land
ased residential care facility for people with chronic mental health issues and the real properties in connection with running

the facility collectively referred to as the 'Transaction' The consideration for the Transaction totalled million and was
settled in cash y hui T aha The Group is considering the accounting implications of the Transaction on whether it
constitutes a pu lic enefit entity com ination in accordance with N IPSAS PBE om ination and relevant initial
measurement and recognition of the purchased usiness assets This assessment will e finalised during the financial year
ending 3 une 2 2

28 Co t es

In accordance with P E IPSAS 3 Accounting Policies Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors ad ustment has een made to
note 2 in prior years financial statements as a result of the understatement of the operating leases amounting to 2 for

hui t aha
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TE RUNANGA O NGATI WHATUA GROUP

Report on the Audit of the General Purpose Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the general purpose financial report of Te Runanga o Ngati Whatua (“the
Runanga”) and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated
financial statements on pages 5 to 23, and the consolidated service performance information
on pages 3 to 4. The complete set of consolidated financial statements comprise the 
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2023, the consolidated statement 
of comprehensive revenue and expense, consolidated statement of changes in net 
assets/equity, consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion the accompanying general purpose financial report presents fairly, in all
material respects:

• the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2023, and (of) its 
consolidated financial performance, and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended; and

• the consolidated service performance for the year ended 30 June 2023 in accordance 
with the Group’s service performance criteria,

in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards issued by the New Zealand Accounting
Standards Board.  

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)) and the audit of the service
performance information in accordance with the ISAs and New Zealand Auditing Standard (NZ
AS) 1 The Audit of Service
Performance Information (NZ). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with 
Professional and Ethical Standard 1 International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners
(including International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the New Zealand 
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Group.
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Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence 
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Other Information  
 
The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the 
date of this auditor’s report is information contained in the general purpose financial report 
but does not include the consolidated service performance information and the consolidated 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated service performance information and consolidated financial 
statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of audit 
opinion or assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated service performance information and 
consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated service performance information and the consolidated financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.   
 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date 
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Trustees’ Responsibilities for the General Purpose Financial Report 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible on behalf of the Group for:  
 
(a) the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements and 
consolidated service performance information in accordance with Public Benefit Entity 
Standards issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board;  
 
(b) service performance criteria that are suitable in order to prepare service performance 
information in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards; and  
 
(c) such internal control as those charged with governance determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of the financial statements and service performance information that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.   
 
In preparing the general purpose financial report those charged with governance are 
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless those charged with governance either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the General Purpose Financial Report  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole, and the consolidated service performance information are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) and NZ AS 1 will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
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an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do 
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Group and the Group’s 
Members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
 
 
 
BDO Northland 
Kerikeri
New Zealand
30 November 2023
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HE KARAKIA WHAKAKAPI
Unuhia, unuhia unuhia ki te uru tapu nui kia wātea, kia māmā 
te ngākau, te tinana, te wairua i te ara takatā koia rā e Rongo, 

whakairia ake ki runga,
Kia tina! Haumi e! Hui e!

TĀIKI E!








